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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS AND EMPLOYEES

nsiby

am pleased to report that Graybar finished 2010 much

stronger than anticipated with healthy growth and an

improved financial position Forecasts for the year mdi

cated that our business would be negatively impacted

by continued weakness in the economy As result we

entered 2010 with sense of caution and prepared the Company to weather

another very difficult year

Our results through the first part of the year were in line with those expecta

tions Sales declined during the first quarter compared to the same period

of 2009 but turned slightly positive on quarter-over-quarter basis begin

ning in the second quarter The Company then experienced significant sales

growth during the second half of the year Because we managed our busi

ness responsibly before during and after the economic downturn our net

income grew as well Our financial condition remained solid with low debt

levels good working capital turnover and higher shareholders equity due to

continued positive earnings The Company is well positioned for accelerated

growth heading into 2011

STRATEGC FOCUS TACTCAL AGLJTY

Graybars strong performance in 2010 resulted from consistent focus on

our long-term strategy which is comprised of four pillars growing profitably

improving performance innovating through technology and winning with

people This strategy has been in place for several years and has successfully

guided Graybar through times of economic growth as well as recession

WhUe our strategy has

remained consistent

over the ast severa

years we adapted

our tactks to capture

opportuntes hi an

everchanghig bushiess

envkonment

ROBERT REYNOLDS JR
chairman President and

Chief Executive Officer
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While our strategy has remained consistent over the past several years we

adapted our tactics to capture opportunities in dynamic business environ

ment For example we aced strong emphasis on growing business with

new accounts in 2010 Districts identified customers in their territories with

relatively low sales volume and high potential Plans were established to

engage these customers and grow our business together Our focus resulted

in higher-than-expected growth for this group of customers nationwide

ncreasing our sales to the rapidly recover ng industrial sector was another

top priority during the year Graybar has served this market for decades

but 2010 we dedicated extensive resources to expand our sales coverage

and strengthen our position with existing and new industral customers

In 2010 we also initiated relationships with companies that have helped

Graybar broaden its capabilites particularly with emerging opportunities

such as solar power and in-building wireless Collaborating with Graybars

sales force these companies bring comprehensive systems and service

solutions to support our customers expanding needs This approach allows

Graybar to extend its reach beyond traditional boundaries while deepening

our offer to the marketplace

Our Corporate Accounts program offers vivid example of embracing

change while remaining focused on strategy We placed greater emphas

on the Corporate Accounts program in 2010 by investing in people and

technology that wi help us leverage our strengths enhance our offering

and improve our execution

NVESI1NG OUR BUSINESS

Throughout the year we continued to invest in both our business and our

people The Companys strong financial condition enabled us to strategically

ncrease our inventory investment in fast-moving items throughout the year

to meet growing customer demand which was strong during the summer

construction season and remained so through the end of the year This

approach not only enhanced our abi ity to serve customers it improved our

inventory performance and reinforced our value in the channel

We also nvested in technology that wil support our business for the future

One of the most notable projects of the year was the implementation of

Customer Relationship Management CRM in our SAP-based computer sys

tem CRM can help us manage information about our customers in much

more organized and targeted way It leads to insights that will influence

our marketing efforts our service offerings and our employee interactions

with customers CRM is just one of many techno ogy enhancements that is

expected to play an important role in Graybars success moving forward

To better serve the needs of our customers we updated several of our loca

tions in 2010 We opened new service center in Brooklyn Park Minnesota

which functons as the primary shipping point for customers across four

state area Smilarly our new City of Industry California service center sup

ports customers throughout southern California We also opened new

branch in Bismarck North Dakota and relocated our Akron Ohio location

to larger facility Graybar Canada also expanded its operat ons in July

with the purchase of an independent distributor AVAD Industrial Sales in

Sudbury Ontario All of these changes are designed to position Graybar

for long-term growth
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Employee training has always been hallmark of our organization In 2010

we continued to invest in the development of our employees In addition to

our online training offerings we held two national trainng conferences and

welcomed new cohort of 20 students into the Rutgers-Graybar Supply

Chain Management Program Our suppliers also hosted many workshops

for employees enabling them to stay up-to-date on me latest technology

and trends

These investments allow us to realize our mission as the vital link in the

supply chain and our vision of working to the advantage of our custom

ers suppliers employees shareholders and communities By investing in

our Company today we can look forward to bui ding bright future for

tomorrow

PREPARING FOR OUR FUTURE

To succeed today and in the future we must embrace change and leverage

it as an opportunity to make our business stronger Graybar announced

number of organizational changes during the year affecting key positions

at both the corporate and district levels The first appointment occurred in

February when Rick Harvey became District Vice President in New York

following the retirement of Chris Olsen In the spring we announced several

appointments including Dick Offenbacher as Senior Vice President U.S

Business Kathy Mazzarella as Senior Vice President Sales and Marketing Bill

Mansfield as Vice President Industrial Market Rob Bezjak as Vice Presdent

Government Sales and Steve Stone as Vice President Comm/Data Scott

Clifford was named Vice President and Chief Information Officer following

the retirement of Steve Becker and Scott Neubauer was appointed Vice

President Service and Administration following the retrement of Dennis

Grousosky David Bender was appointed to Seattle District Vice President in

November following the retirement of Ken Sparks who was also member

of Graybars Board of Directors Finally Kathy Mazzarella was appointed

to the additional position of Executive Vice President and Chief Operating

Officer in December

am proud of Graybars long tradition of promoting employees from within

the Company and pleased that we have so many capable leaders ready

to take on positions of greater responsibility It gives me confidence in our

Companys future and congratulate each of these individuals on their

promotions

In addition would like to express my gratitude to those who retired in 2010

after long and successful careers with Graybar In particular thank Ken

Sparks who served Graybar in special way as valued member of our

Board of Directors We appreciate his many contributions and wish him

well in retirement

Finally thank each employee whose hard work dedication and commit

ment contributed to Graybars success Working together we made 2010

great year

ROW Ken Sparks

BOW Kathy Mazzareiia end Dick Offenbacher

ROW Rick Harvey and Rob Bezjak

RoW 8W Mansfieid and Steve Stone

ROWs Scott Neubauer and David Render

ROW Scott Clifford and Dennis Grousosky

vow Steve Becker and Chris Oisen

Robert Reynolds Jr

Chairman President and CEO
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fri Higenty

odays business

climate is

characterized

by volatihty

uncertainty

complexity and rapid change

These challenges present both

opportunities and threats We

diligently monitor trends that affect

Graybar and those with whom

we do business By understanding

these trends in 2010 we were able

to adapt to our ever-changing

environment while maintaining

our focus on Company strategy

From an economic perspective the

United States economy began to

show signs of slow recovery in 2010

Credit constraints hampered sales

growth in the construction market

sector however we saw positive

trends in other areas including the

classes Interest in renewable

energy and energy-saving tech

nologies continued to rtse as

organizations looked for ways to

improve their energy efficiency

while promoting environmenta

sustainability The concept of

smart grd became better defined

and manufacturers prepared for

the expanded presence of electric

vehicles Companies looked for

ways to improve productvity lower

costs and reduce waste making

many of our services such as

Graybar SmartStock compelling

offerings for customers

In addton several legislative and

regulatory issues contributed to

complexity and uncertainty in our

business environment 2010

Examples included health care

reform leg slation stimulus spend-

Graybar Sma tStock prov des customers with

stream ned way to manage their nventory which

can boost productivity and reduce costs

commercial and industrial customer ng employment and tax law
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Services are an ntegr part of our vahie

proposition and we mphimented wide

range of servkes to support our customers

and grow saes hi 2O1O

changes and new environmental

safety and financial regulations

Graybar carefully monitored

corporate governance reform

initiatives regulatory changes and

compliance issues throughout 2010

and will continue to do so in the

All of these factors affected our

industry and our business in 2010

While we worked to monitor

external trends protect against

threats and capture opportunities

we remained focused on executing

our long-term strategy growing

profitably improving performance

innovating through technology and

winning with people

GROWNG PR0FTABLY

Profitable growth remained

constant theme throughout 2010

as we worked to expand our

business with our contractor

industrial government commercial

telephone company and utility

customers

Graybar is recognized for its

strength in the construction busi

ness which includes broad range

of contractors integrators installers

and engineers Construction is

labor-intensive business and

customers constantly look for ways

to reduce non-productive labor

while optimizing the talents of

their skilled personnel In 2010 we

continued to promote Graybars

labor saving products and solutions

with the Graybar ESP program

which focuses on driving Efficiency

Safety and Productivity

Growing Graybars industrial

business was top priority in 2010

This included providing service and

future
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product solutions for industrial

maintenance repair and operations

MRO as well as original equip

ment manufacturing OEM
applcations We also began

implementing comprehensive

plan to increase our sales penetra

tion of the industrial market by

organizing our industrial sales

organization into single-focus

group in the same manner as our

specialzed comm/data and

Our business with commercial

customers primarIly targeted healtn

care and educational opportunities

throughout the year leveragIng the

broad solutions and capabilities

Graybar has to offer Working

closely with our suppliers we

promoted intelligent building and

energy solutions that help commer

cial customers manage their

facilIties in more integrated and

efficient way

To support solution selling

approach Graybar expanded its

product and soluton offering wth

the expanson of our capabilities in

areas such as solar power in-build

ing wireless electrIc vehicle supply

equipment and intelligent transpor

tation systems We also continued

to bring the latest technologies to

the marketplace in lighting energy

solutions IP networking security

and building infrastructure

solutions

ServIces are an integral part of our

value proposition and we mple

mented wide range of services to

support our customers and grow

sales To help customers work more

efficIently we provided supply

chain solutions that streamline

government sales groups
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management of materials and

inventory We expanded our

capabilities for wire management

which improves productivity on the

jobsite Our technical specialists

collaborated with suopliers

customers and internal resources to

assess customer needs and recom

mend complete solutions And

we used technology in innovative

ways to acce orate and simplify our

customers transactions Craybars

customer focus combined with our

extensive product offerings and

service capabilities helped our

business grow profitably in 2010

MPROVNG PERFORMANCE

At Graybar we continually work

to improve all aspects of our

Company including our processes

our organization and our perfor

mance We str ye for consistent

our customers and make the best

use of our resources

Graybars financial performance

improved in 2010 Sales increased

by 5.4 percent compared to

2009 drying our net income

up 12.7 percent We managed our

assets and debt levels wisely Our

balance sheet remained in excellent

condition This disciplined approach

to managng our business trans

lated into reduced shareholder risk

and increased shareholder wealth

It also provided Graybar with the

resources to support growth as

business improved throughout

the year

In additIon to our improved

financial performance Graybar

demonstrated excellent operational

performance in 2010 as seen

execution which allows us to satisfy in lower error rates improved
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Graybar launched Continuous Improvement

process in 2006 and since then the program

documented cost savings for the Company

operating efficiency metrics and

higher on-time delivery results

Our inventory strategy supported

business growth and our safety

performance remained solid

allowing us to serve our customers

with speed intelligence and

efficiency

Graybar launched Continuous

Improvement process in 2006

which has produced more than

$19 million in cost savings for the

Company Our focus in 2010 was

on customer engagement where

we applied the Continuous

Improvement methodology to

processes that were most impor

tant to our customers Teams

worked throughout the year on

specific projects which resulted

in several million dollars in cost

savings during 2010 alone

INNOVATNG THROUGH

TECHNOLOGY

We use technology in innovative

ways to drive cost out of our

business and improve efficiency

Technology also he1ps us grow our

sales by offering tools that make

it easy for customers and supplers

to do business with Graybar Our

Information Technology IT
organizaton takes lead role in

implementing technology to meet

the needs of the business In 2010

this included several system

enhancements software and

nardware upgrades and irzplemen

tation of new technologies

Customer Relationship

Management CRM was one of

Graybars most significant technol

ogy projects of 2010 We anticpate

that CRM will help us work more

intelligent with our customers and
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In 2010 we expanded the use of

assessmenttools to match employees

with jobs that leverage their knowledge

skills and interests and to support their

ongoing development

better anticipate their needs and

priorities In 2010 we also worked

on an extensive upgrade of our

e-Commerce platform to incorpo

rate recommendations made by our

customers suppliers and employ

ees We look forward to launch

of the enhanced site in the first half

of 2011

We expanded the use of our

Warehouse Management System

WMS software in our service

centers to promote more stream

lined warehouse operations at

those locations We also explored

Voice over Internet Protocol V0IP

systems as means to reduce costs

and enhance our service and

communications capabilities for

the future

To help employees use technology

effectively we introduced brief

tutorials that provide instant online

help with technology questions

raising employee confidence and

enabling better service The power

of technology in the hands of our

knowledgeable people can support

competitive advantage for the

long-term

WNNNG WTH PEOPLE

As an employee-owned company

Graybar strives to create an

environment where employees can

grow and prosper while using their

knowledge and skills to contribute

to the Companys success In 2010

we expanded the use of assessment

tools to match employees with jobs

that leverage their knowledge skills

and interests and to support their

ongoing development
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Job assessments also help with

recruiting which became much

higher priority as business

improved throughout the year To

attract strong candidates Graybar

enhanced its recruiting web site

and implemented several innovative

tactics to reach potential employ

ees We also introduced new

onboarding program which helps

managers familiarize new employ

ees with Graybar quickly and

consistently

Performance management

remained an important e1ement

of our people strategy in 2010

with all employees participating

in performance and goal setting

discussions during the first quarter

This has led to greater consistency

in our performance management

and development plans that help

employees succeed

Our succession planning process

was proven effective during the

year as we quickly and seamlessly

made several organizational

changes in key positions through

out the year This effort goes

beyond our executive-level posi

tions to include key positions at

the district and branch levels

Finally Graybar continued to

provide employees with competi

tive benefits program that helped

them plan well invest well and live

well We will continue to refine our

benefits program to meet the

changing needs of todays work

force and to support the health of

our Company

clearer expectations for employees
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ooking back on

our achievements

for the year we

can see how our

core values of

integrity employee ownership

long-term view and customer focus

shaped our thinking and guided our

actions

CONNECTED BY OUR VALUES

COMMITTED TO OUR PURPOSE

Graybars reputation as company

with integrity is reflected in the way

we interact with our fellow employ

ees serve our customers collabo

rate with our suppliers and repre

sent Graybar in our communities

One way we reinforce culture of

integrity is by encouraging open

honest and constructive communi

cation among our employees We

emphasized employee communica

tion throughout the year using

several formats including all-

employee web conferences

meetings the Outlook magazine

online company news postings

advisory teams and many other

methods We look forward to

enhancing communication with

expanded use of tools that increase

engagement support collaboration

and cultivate sense of community

Empoyee ownership is core value

that reflects one of Graybars most

unique and cherished characteris

tics It inspires us to work toward

common goals and provides way

for our employees and retirees to

share in Graybars success In 2010

our employee and retiree share

holders earned 20 percent return

on their investment comprised of

10 percent cash dividend and

10 percent stock dividend We also

saw excellent participation among
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elIgible employees in our annual

stock offering

Integral to employee ownership is

our long-term view Many of the

strategic priorities we pursued were

not intended to produce short-term

gains but rather to build long-term

opportunities for growth Our focus

on the industrial market and

corporate accounts our invest

ments in technology and inventory

our commitment to sustainability

and our recruiting and development

programs all reflect this long-term

perspective

Our fourth core value is customer

focus Our customer service

measurements provide compellng

evidence of the importance we

place on consistently satisfying

our customers needs Error rates

declined to an all-time low in

2010 while on-time delivery

measurements continued to climb

We also directed our Continuous

Improvement process to focus on

problems and opportunities that

directly affect customers Customer

service is at the heart of our

business and our performance

demonstrates the value we place

on satisfying our customers

expectations

All of these core values point to

shared purpose To be highly

recognized progressive company

providing gainful employment and

quality of life both whIe working

and Into retirement years with

employee ownership as sense of

pride and way of building per

sonal wealth for the future

Everything we do to position

Graybar for success is driven by

our commitment to this purpose



Customer servke at the heart of our

business and our performance demonstrates

the vaue we pace on satisfying our

customers expectatons
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CARNG FOR OUR COMMUNTES

Achieving our strategic purpose

can only happen when we take

an active role in supporting our

industry and the communities

where we do business Graybar

participated in several industry

associations including the National

Association of Wholesaler-

Distributors NAW National

Association of Electrical

Distributors NAED Industry Data

Exchange Association IDEA and

the U.S Green Building Council

Graybar was also Premier Partner

with the National Electrical

Contractors Association NECA
and an Original Platinum Partner

with the Independent Electrical

Contractors Association IEC In

2010 Graybar sponsored special

program that contributed $250000

to ELECTRI International an

organization established by NECA

in 1989 to help electrical contrac

tors anticipate and prepare for the

future This donation will help

ELECTRI further its mission to fund

conduct and monitor the electrical

industrys critical research and

deliver management education

and supervisory training programs

Our employees also supported

wide range of civic and charitable

organizations serving on boards

and committees leading fundrais

ing activities helping with disaster

recovery and coordinating resources

for those in need In some cases

employees served individually while

others served in groups represent

ing Graybar and making differ

ence in the community Many

employees and retirees also

contributed to the Graybar Family

Foundation an organization

designed to assist active Graybar

ELECTR nternatlon Contbbuton

RUSS Alessi president of ELECTRI International The

Foundation for Electrical construction left accepts

donation from Graybar President Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer Robert Reynolds Jr right of

$250000 that will help fund conduct and monitor the

electrical industrys critical research and deliver mam

agement education and supervisory training programs
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Throughout 201 OGraybar empoyees remained

connected by our core vaues and committed

to our shared purpose We gave back to the

communtes where we do business and

supported our ndustry
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employees who have experienced

an unexpected financial hardship

for reasons beyond their control

CELEBRATING OUR ACHEVEMENTS

Graybars reputation is built on the

strength of our Company and the

spirit of our employees In 2010 we

were recognized on the FORTUNE

Worlds Most Admired Companies

list for the ninth consecutive year

We were also included in the

Information Week 500 annual

ranking of the best and brightest

business technology innovators

for the eighth consecutive year In

addition Graybar was named one

of the 50 Best Companies to Sell

for Now and one of the 500 Largest

Sales Forces in America by Selling

Rower magazine Graybar ranked

11 on Chief Executives list of top

40 companies for leadership and

ranked on Industrial Distributions

listing of the 50 largest industrial

distributors the first year we were

included on this list

We received several other awards

at the national and local level for

our excellence in innovation

execution and support of key

customers and suppliers all of

which were highlighted in the 2010

Awards and Recognition issue of

the Outlook magazine

Throughout 2010 Graybar employ

ees remained connected by our

core values and committed to our

shared purpose We gave back

to the communities where we

do business and supported our

industry As we close the year we

celebrate our achievements and

look forward to even greater

success in 2011 and beyond
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PART

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying audited consolidated

financial statements of Graybar Electric Company Inc Graybar or the Company the notes thereto and

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as of and for the year

ended December 31 2010 included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K The results shown herein are not

necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in any future periods

Certain statements other than purely historical information including estimates projections statements

relating to the Companys business plans objectives and expected operating results and the assumptions

upon which those statements are based are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 the PSLRA Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section

1E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Acts These forward-looking statements generally

are identified by the words believes projects expects anticipates estimates intends strategy

plan may will would will be will continue will likely result and other similarexpressions The

Company intends such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe-harbor provisions for forward-

looking statements contained in the PSLRA Forward-looking statements are based on current expectations

and assumptions that are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materi

ally from the forward-looking statements The Companys ability to predict results or the actual effect of

future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain Factors which could have material adverse impact on

the Companys operations and future prospects on consolidated basis include but are not limited to general

economic conditions particularly in the residential commercial and industrial building construction indus

tries volatility in the prices of industrial metal commodities disruptions in the Companys sources of supply

sustained interruption in the operation of the Companys information systems adverse legal proceedings or

other claims and the inability or limitations on the Companys ability to raise debt or equity capital These

risks and uncertainties should also be considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance

should not be placed on such statements The Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise publicly

any forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise unless

otherwise required by applicable securities law Further information concerning the Company including addi

tional factors that could materially impact our financial results is included herein and in our other filings with

the United States Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC or Commission Actual results and the

timing of events could differ materially from the forward-looking statements as result of certain factors

number of which are outlined in Item 1A Risk Factors of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2010

All dollar amounts are stated in thousands $000s in the following discussion except for per share data

Item Business

The Company

Graybar Electric Company Inc is engaged in the distribution of electrical communications and data net

working commldata products and the provision of related supply chain management and logistics services

primarily to electrical and commldata contractors industrial plants federal state and local governments com
mercial users telephone companies and power utilities in North America All products sold by the Company
are purchased by the Company from others The Companys business activity is primarily with customers in

the United States of America US Graybar also has subsidiary operations with distribution facilities in

Canada and Puerto Rico

The Company was incorporated under the laws of the State of New York on December 11 1925 to purchase

the wholesale distribution business of Western Electric Company Incorporated Graybar is one hundred per
cent 100% owned by its active and retired employees and there is no public trading market for its common
stock The location of the principal executive offices of the Company is 34 North Meramec Avenue St Louis
Missouri 63105 and its telephone number is 314 573-9200

The Company maintains an internet website at http//www.graybar.com Graybars filings with the SEC
including its Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K
and amendments to those reports are accessible free of charge on our website within the About Us page



under SEC Filings as soon as reasonably practicable after we file the reports with the SEC Additionally

copy of the Companys SEC filings can be obtained at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100 Street N.E
Washington D.C 20549 on official business days or by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 copy of our elec

tronically filed materials can also be obtained at http//www.sec.gov

Suppliers

Graybar distributes approximately one million products stockkeeping units or SKUs purchased

primarily from nearly 4100 manufacturers and suppliers through the Companys network of distribution

facilities The relationship between the Company and its suppliers is customarily nonexciusive national or

regional distributorship terminable upon 30 to 90 days notice by either party The Company maintains long

standing relationships with number of its principal suppliers

The Company purchased approximately fifty-three percent 53% of the products it sold during 2010 from

its top 25 suppliers However the Company generally deals with more than one supplier for any product cat

egory and there are alternative sources of comparable products available for nearly all product categories

Products

The Company stocks approximately 90000 of the products it distributes and therefore is able to supply

its customers locally with wide variety of electrical and commldata products The products distributed by

the Company consist primarily of wire and cable lighting fixtures power distribution equipment commldata

products for wide and local area networks conduit boxes and fittings wiring devices motor controls indus

trial automation lamps industrial enclosures station apparatus tools and test equipment and transformers

Order Backlog

On December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company had orders on hand that totaled $604233 and $526608

respectively The Company expects that approximately eighty-nine percent 89% of the orders it had on hand

at December 31 2010 will be filled within the twelve-month period ending December 31 2011 Generally

orders placed by customers and accepted by the Company have resulted in sales However customers from

time to time request cancellation and the Company has historically allowed such cancellations

Sales And Distribution

Graybar sells its products primarily through network of sales offices and distribution facilities located

in thirteen geographical districts throughout the US The Company operates multiple distribution facilities

in each district each of which carries an inventory of products and operates as wholesale distributor for the

territory in which it is located Some districts have sales offices that do not carry an inventory of product In

addition the Company maintains seven national zone warehouses and seven district service centers contain

ing inventories of both standard and specialized products Both the national zone warehouses and district

service centers replenish local inventories carried at the Companys US distribution facilities and make ship

ments directly to customers The Company also has subsidiary operations with distribution facilities located

in Canada and Puerto Rico



The sales and distribution facilities operated by the Company at December 31 2010 are shown below

US Locations

Number of Sales and National

District Distribution Facilities Zone Warehouses

Boston 11 Austell GA
California 21 Fresno CA
Dallas 13 Joliet IL

Chicago 19 Richmond VA

Minneapolis 17 Springfield MO
New York 12 Stafford TX
Atlanta 20 Youngstown OH
Phoenix 11

Pittsburgh 19

Richmond 18

Seattle 12

St Louis 15

Tampa 19

Includes District Service Centers

International Locations

Number of

Distribution Facilities

Graybar Electric Canada Ltd 30

Halifax Nova Scotia Canada

Graybar International Inc

Carolina Puerto Rico

When the specialized nature or size of particular shipment warrants the Company has products shipped

directly from its suppliers to the place of use otherwise orders are filled from the Companys inventory On
dollar volume basis approximately fifty-six percent 56% and fifty-five percent 55% of customer orders were
filled from the Companys inventory in 2010 and 2009 respectively and the remainder were shipped directly

from the supplier to the place of use

The Company generally finances its inventory through the collection of trade receivables and trade accounts

payable terms with its suppliers The Companys short-term borrowing facilities are also used to finance inven

tory when necessary Historically the Company has not used long-term borrowings to finance inventory

The Company distributes its products to approximately 120000 customers which fall into three principal

classes The following list shows the estimated percentage of the Companys total sales attributable to each of

these classes for the last three years

Percentage of Sales

For the Years Ended December 31
Class of Customers 2010 2009 2008

Electrical Contractors 45.2% 46.0% 48.1%

Data and Voice Communications 20.6% 20.5% 19.4%

Commercial Industrial 19.4% 18.5% 18.6%

At December 31 2010 the Company employed approximately 2800 persons in sales capacities

Approximately 1200 of these sales personnel were outside sales representatives working to generate sales

with current and prospective customers The remainder of the sales personnel were sales and marketing man
agers inside sales representatives and advertising quotation and counter personnel



Competition

The Company believes that it is one of the four largest wholesale distributors of electrical and commldata

products in the US This market is highly competitive and the Company estimates that the five largest whole

sale distributors account for approximately twenty-eight percent 28% of the total market The balance of

the market is made up of several thousand independent distributors operating on local regional or national

basis and manufacturers who sell their products directly to end users

The Companys pricing structure for the products it sells reflects the costs associated with the services

that it provides and its prices are generally competitive The Company believes that while price is an impor

tant customer consideration it is the service that Graybar is able to provide customers that distinguishes the

Company from many of its competitors whether they are distributors or manufacturers selling direct Graybar

views its ability to quickly supply its customers with broad range of electrical and commldata products

through conveniently located distribution facilities as competitive advantage that customers value However

if customer is not looking for one distributor to provide wide range of products and does not require prompt

delivery or other services competitor of the Company that does not provide these benefits may be in posi

tion to offer lower price

Foreign Sales

Sales by the Company to customers in foreign countries were made primarily by Company subsidiaries in

Canada and Puerto Rico and accounted for approximately six percent 6%five percent 5% and five percent

5% of consolidated revenues in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Limited export activities are handled

primarily from Company facilities in Texas Arizona and California Long-lived assets located outside the US

represented approximately two percent 2%one percent 1%and one percent 1% of the Companys consoli

dated assets at the end of 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The Company does not have significant foreign

currency exposure and does not believe there are any other significant risks attendant to its foreign operations

Employees

At December 31 2010 the Company employed approximately 7000 persons on full-time basis

Approximately 110 of these persons were covered by union contracts The Company has not had material

work stoppage and considers its relations with its employees to be good

Item 1A Risk Factors

Our liquidity financial condition and results of operations are subject to various risks including but not

limited to those discussed below The risks outlined below are those that we believe are currently the most

significant although additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently deem less significant may
also impact our liquidity financial condition and results of operations

Our sales fluctuate with general economic conditions particularly in the residential commer

cial and industrial building construction industries Our operating locations are widely distributed

geographically across the US and to lesser extent Canada Customers for both electrical and commldata

products are similarly diverse we have approximately 120000 customers and our largest customer accounts

for only five percent 5% of our total revenue While our geographic and customer concentrations are relatively

low our results of operations are nonetheless dependent on favorable conditions in both the general economy

and the construction industry In addition conditions in the construction industry are greatly influenced by

the availability of project financing and the cost of borrowing

The Companys results of operations are impacted by changes in commodity prices primarily

copper and steel Many of the products sold by the Company are subject to wide and frequent price fluctua

tions because they are composed primarily of copper or steel two industrial metal commodities that have been

subject to extreme price volatility during the past several years Examples of such products include copper

wire and cable and steel conduit enclosures and fittings The Companys gross margin rate or mark-up per

centage on these products is relatively constant over time though not necessarily in the short term Therefore

as the cost of these products to the Company declines pricing to our customers decreases by similarpercent

age This impacts our results of operations by lowering both revenue and gross margin Rising copper and



steel prices have the opposite effect increasing both revenue and gross margin assuming the quantities of the

affected products sold remain constant

The impact of commodity price fluctuations on the value of our merchandise inventory is reduced by the

Companys use of the last-in first-out LIFO inventory cost method which matches current product costs to

current revenues

We purchase one hundred percent 100% of the products we sell to our customers from other

parties As wholesale distributor our business and financial results are dependent on our ability to pur

chase products from manufacturers not controlled by our Company that we in turn sell to our customers

Approximately fifty-three percent 53% of our purchases are made from only 25 manufacturers sustained

disruption in our ability to source product from one or more of the largest of these vendors might have mate

rial impact on our ability to fulfill customer orders resulting in lost revenue and in rare cases damages for late

or non-delivery

Our daily activities are highly dependent on the uninterrupted operation of our information

systems We are recognized industry leader for our use of information technology in all areas of our busi

ness sales customer service inventory management finance accounting and human resources We main

tain redundant information systems as part of our disaster recovery program and are able to operate in many

respects using paper-based system to help mitigate complete interruption in our information processing

capabilities Nonetheless our information systems remain vulnerable to natural disasters wide-area tele

communications or power utility outages terrorist or cyber-attack or other major disruptions sustained

interruption in the functioning of our information systems however unlikely could lower operating income by

negatively impacting revenue expenses or both

We are subject to legal proceedings and other claims arising out of the conduct of our business

These proceedings and claims relate to public and private sector transactions product liability contract per

formance and employment matters On the basis of information currently available to us we do not believe

that existing proceedings and claims will have material impact on our financial position or results of opera

tions However litigation is unpredictable and we could incur judgments or enter into settlements for current

or future claims that could adversely affect our financial position or our results of operations in particular

period

More specifically with respect to asbestos litigation as of December 31 2010 approximately 2500 indi

vidual cases and 146 class actions are pending that allege actual or potential asbestos-related injuries resulting

from the use of or exposure to products allegedly sold by us Additional claims will likely be filed against us in

the future Our insurance carriers have historically borne virtually all costs and liability with respect to this

litigation and are continuing to do so Accordingly our future liability with respect to pending and unasserted

claims is dependent on the continued solvency of our insurance carriers Other factors that could impact this

liability are the number of future claims filed against us the defense and settlement costs associated with

these claims changes in the litigation environment including changes in federal or state law governing the

compensation of asbestos claimants adverse jury verdicts in excess of historic settlement amounts and bank

ruptcies of other asbestos defendants Because any of these factors may change our future exposure is unpre

dictable and it is possible that we may incur costs that would have material adverse impact on our liquidity

financial position or results of operations in future periods

Our financing arrangements and loan agreements contain financial covenants and certain

other restrictions on our activities and those of our subsidiaries Our senior unsecured notes revolv

ing credit facility and trade receivable securitization program impose contractual limits on our ability and

the ability of most of our subsidiaries to make investments including in our common stock pay dividends

incur debt dispose of property and issue equity securities In addition we are required to maintain acceptable

financial ratios relating to debt leverage interest coverage net worth asset performance and certain other

customary covenants Our failure to comply with these obligations may cause an event of default triggering

an acceleration of the debt owed to our creditors or limit our ability to obtain additional credit under these

facilities While we expect to remain in compliance with the terms of our credit agreements our failure to do

so could have negative impact on our ability to borrow funds and maintain acceptable levels of cash flow from

financing activities



The value of our common stock is dependent primarily upon the regular payment of dividends
which are paid at the discretion of the Board of Directors The repurchase price for our common stock

under the Companys purchase option is the same as the issue price Accordingly as long as Graybar exercises

its option to purchase appreciation in the value of an investment in our common stock is dependent solely on

the Companys ability and willingness to declare dividends Although cash dividends have been paid on the

common stock each year since 1929 as with any corporations common stock payment of dividends is subject

to the discretion of the Board of Directors

There is no public trading market for our common stock The Companys common stock is one hun
dred percent 100% owned by its active and retired employees Common stock may not be sold by the holder

thereof except after first offering it to the Company The Company has always exercised this purchase option

in the past and expects that it will continue to do so As result no public trading market for our common
stock exists nor is one expected to develop This lack of public trading market for the Companys common
stock may limit Graybars ability to raise large amounts of equity capital

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable

Item Properties

As of December 31 2010 the Company had seven national zone warehouses ranging in size from approxi
mately 160000 to 240000 square feet The lease arrangement used to finance three of the national zone

warehouses is discussed in Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements located in Item
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K Of the remaining four

national zone warehouses two are owned and two are leased The remaining lease terms on these two leased

facilities are approximately three and six years

The Company also had seven district service centers ranging in size from 116000 to 210000 square feet

as of December 31 2010 Three of the seven district service centers are owned and the others are leased The

remaining lease terms on the leased district service centers are between three and nine years

Graybar operates in thirteen geographical districts each of which maintains multiple distribution facilities

that consist primarily of warehouse space small portion of each distribution facility is used for offices Some
districts have sales offices that do not carry an inventory of products The number of distribution and sales

facilities excluding service centers in district varies from ten to twenty and totals 200 for all districts The
facilities range in size from approximately 1000 to 180000 square feet with the average being approximately

33000 square feet The Company owns 117 of these facilities and leases 83 of them for varying terms with the

majority having remaining lease term of less than five years

The Company maintains thirty distribution facilities in Canada of which nineteen are owned and eleven

are leased The majority of the leased facilities have remaining lease term of less than five years The facili

ties range in size from approximately 1000 to 60000 square feet In November 2010 the Company purchased

nine facilities from related party in Canada that were previously leased The Company also has 22000

square foot facility in Puerto Rico the lease on which expires in 2014

The Companys headquarters are located in St Louis Missouri in an 88000 square foot building owned

by the Company The Company also leases 200000 square foot operations and administration center in St
Louis The Company has options to purchase this facility in 2011 2016 and at the expiration of the lease in

2021

As of December 31 2010 the Company had granted mortgages or other security interests on twenty-two

buildings securing $44445 in debt Seven of the twenty-two facilities are subject to security interests totaling

$28720 under lease arrangement with an independent lessor The other fifteen facilities are subject to first

mortgages securing fixed- and variable-rate notes of which $15725 in principal remains outstanding



Item Legal Proceedings

There are presently no pending legal proceedings that are expected to have material impact on the

Company or its subsidiaries

Item Removed and Reserved

Supplemental Item Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table lists the name age as of March 2011 position offices and certain other information

with respect to the executive officers of the Company The term of office of each executive officer will expire

upon the appointment of his or her successor by the Board of Directors

Name Age Business experience last five years

Beagen 54 Employed by Company in 1980 Vice President and Controller

September 2005 to present

DAlessandro 50 Employed by Company in 1983 Senior Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer May 2005 to present

Geekie 49 Employed by Emerson Electric Company Process Management Group

Assistant General Counsel May 2000 to July 2005 Employed by XTRA

Corporation General Counsel and Secretary August 2005 to February

2008 Employed by Company in 2008 Deputy General Counsel February

2008 to August 2008 Senior Vice President Secretary and General

Counsel August 2008 to present

Giglio 56 Employed by Company in 1978 Senior Vice President Operations April

2002 to present

Mazzarella 50 Employed by Company in 1980 Senior Vice President Human Resources

and Strategic Planning December 2005 to April 2008 Senior Vice

President Sales and Marketing CommlData April 2008 to February

2010 Senior Vice President Sales and Marketing March 2010 to

present Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer December

2010 to present

Offenbacher 60 Employed by Company in 1968 Senior Vice President Sales and

Marketing February 2004 to April 2008 Senior Vice President Sales

and Marketing Electrical April 2008 to February 2010 Senior Vice

President U.S Business March 2010 to present

Propst 41 Employed by Company in 2002 Senior Corporate Counsel March 2004

to March 2008 Vice President Human Resources April 2008 to June

2009 Senior Vice President Human Resources June 2009 to present

Reed 53 Employed by Company in 1980 Vice President and Treasurer April 2000

to present

Reynolds Jr 62 Employed by Company in 1972 President and Chief Executive Officer

July 2000 to present Chairman of the Board April 2001 to present

On January 10 2011 Offenbacher an officer director and Senior Vice President U.S Business of

the Company announced his intention to retire as an officer and director and from his employment with the

Company effective April 2011 Lyons Tampa District Vice President and director of the company will

replace Mr Offenbacher as an officer and Senior Vice President U.S Business effective April 2011



PART II

Item Market for the Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities

The Companys capital stock is one hundred percent 100% owned by its active and retired employees
and there is no public trading market for its common stock Since 1928 substantially all of the issued and

outstanding shares of common stock have been held of record by voting trustees under successive voting trust

agreements Under applicable state law voting trust may not have term greater than ten years The 2007

Voting Trust Agreement expires by its terms on March 15 2017 At December 31 2010 approximately eighty-

two percent 82% of the common stock was held in this voting trust The participation of shareholders in the

voting trust is voluntary at the time the voting trust is created but is irrevocable during its term Shareholders

who elect not to participate in the voting trust hold their common stock as shareholders of record

No shareholder may sell transfer or otherwise dispose of shares of common stock or the voting trust

interests issued with respect thereto common stock common shares or shares without first offering

the Company the option to purchase such shares at the price at which the shares were issued The Company
also has the option to purchase at the issue price the common stock of any holder who dies or ceases to be an

employee of the Company for any cause other than retirement on Company pension The Company has

always exercised its purchase option and expects to continue to do so All outstanding shares of the Company
have been issued at $20.00 per share

The following table sets forth information regarding purchases of common stock by the Company all of

which were made pursuant to the foregoing provisions

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Average Total Number of Shares
Total Number of Price Paid Purchased as Part of Publicly

Period Shares Purchased Per Share Announced Plans or Programs

October to October 31 2010 53692 $20.00 N/A
November to November 30 2010 38522 $20.00 N/A
December to December 31 2010 26755 $20.00 N/A

Total 118969 $20.00 N/A

Capital Stock at December 31 2010

Number of

Security Number of

Title of Class Holders Shares

Voting Trust Interests issued with respect to Common Stock 4902 9475978
Common Stock 1055 2143998

Total 5957 11619976

Adjusted for the declaration of ten percent 10% stock dividend tn 2010 shares related to which were issued on February 2011

Year Ended
Dividend Data in dollars per share December 31

Period 2010 2009

First Quarter $0.30 $0.30

Second Quarter 0.30 0.30

Third Quarter 0.30 0.30

Fourth Quarter 1.10 1.10

Total $2.00 $2.00
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On December 2010 ten percent 10% stock dividend was declared to shareholders of record on

January 2011 Shares representing this dividend were issued on February 2011

On December 10 2009 ten percent 10% stock dividend was declared to shareholders of record on

January 2010 Shares representing this dividend were issued on February 2010

Company Performance

The following graph shows five-year comparison of cumulative total shareholders returns for the

Companys common stock the Standard Poors 500 Composite Stock Index and Comparable Company
Index of companies selected by the Company as being representative of the Companys line of business

Total Shareholders Returns

$300

$250

$200

$150

$100

50

$0
2005

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Graybar $100.00 $115.55 $139.55 $183.14 $240.34 $290.27

Comparable Company Index $100.00 $109.31 $121.11 94.18 $121.91 $172.95

SP 500 $100.00 $113.62 $117.63 72.36 89.33 $100.75

The comparison above assumes $100.00 invested on December 31 2005 and reinvestment of dividends

including the $1.10 per share cash dividend paid by the Company on January 2006

The companies included in the Comparable Company Index are Anixter International Inc Applied

Industrial Technologies Inc Grainger Inc Interline Brands Inc Owens Minor Inc Park-Ohio

Holdings Corp Watsco Inc and WESCO International Inc

The market value of the Companys stock in the absence of public trading market assumes continuation

of the Companys practice of issuing and purchasing offered securities at $20.00 per share

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
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Item Selected Financial Data

This summary should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Five Year Summary of Selected Consolidated Financial Data
Stated in thousands except for per share data

For the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Gross Sales $4634231 $4395718 $5423122 $5279653 $5028827
Cash Discounts 17854 17836 22968 21352 19684
Net Sales $4616377 $4377882 $5400154 $5258301 $5009143
Gross Margin 866641 854950 $1045219 $1032318 961451

Net Income attributable to

Graybar Electric Company Inc 41998 37277 87400 83421 57388

Average common shares outstanding 11647 11708 11636 11453 11224

Net Income attributable to

Graybar Electric Company Inc

per share of Common StockA 3.61 3.18 7.51 7.28 5.11

Cash Dividends per share of

Common Stock 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Total assets $1519438 $1431953 $1556199 $1532028 $1508246

Total liabilities 960631 893784 $1048608 $1048649 $1061476

Shareholders equityB 558807 538169 507591 483379 446770

Working capital 415724 424993 431126 394291 415465

Long-term debt 64859 80959 113633 115419 203869

All periods adjusted for the declaration of ten percent 10% stock dividend declared in December 2010 ten percent 10% stock dividend declared in

December 2009 twenty percent 20% stock dividend declared in December 2008 twenty percent 20% stock dividend declared in December 2007 and

ten percent 10% stock dividend declared in December 2006 Prior to these adjustments the average common shares outstanding for
the years ended

December 31 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 were 10644 9617 7888 and 6442 respectively

All periods adjusted for
the January 2009 adoption of accounting and disclosure requirements under generally accepted accounting principles in the

US US GAAP issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB regarding noncontrolling interests in consolidated financial statements

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Managements Discussion and Analysis provides narrative on the Companys results of operations finan

cial condition liquidity and cash flows for the three-year period ended December 31 2010 This discussion

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the notes to the

consolidated financial statements included in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Business Overview

General economic conditions in the Companys North American trading area improved throughout the year

ended December 31 2010 Capital expenditures on business equipment during 2010 increased significantly

over 2009 levels Spending on building construction during the year ended December 31 2010 however

remained constrained by tight credit availability and muted demand for new facilities Preliminary economic

reports indicate that the multi-year decline in building construction ended during the fourth quarter of 2010

however and early projections for 2011 are for positive growth in this sector of the economy

Growth in the Companys net sales accelerated throughout the year finishing with 14.9% increase during

the fourth quarter of 2010 compared to the same period of 2009 Net sales for the year ended December 31

2010 increased 5.4% compared to the year ended December 31 2009 Price inflation driven by rising commod

ity prices particularly copper contributed significantly to the Companys sales growth Gross margin increased

1.4% for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to the same period of 2009 though the Companys gross

margin as percent of net sales declined to 18.8% in 2010 from 19.5% in 2009
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The Company expects moderate growth in net sales improved gross margin as percent of net sales and

increased net income for 2011

Consolidated Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain information relating to the operations of the Company stated in

thousands of dollars and as percentage of net sales for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

2010 2009 2008

Dollars Percent Dollars Percent Dollars Percent

Net Sales 4616377 100.0% 4377882 100.0% 5400154 100.0%

Cost of merchandise sold 3749736 81.2 3522932 80.5 4354935 80.7

Gross Margin 866641 18.8 854950 19.5 1045219 19.3

Selling general and

administrative expenses 753988 16.3 745886 17.0 857970 15.9

Depreciation and amortization 39725 0.9 39352 0.9 37980 0.7
Other income net 4608 0.1 2786 0.1 2856 0.1

Income from Operations 77536 1.7 72498 1.7 152125 2.8

Interest expense net 8062 0.2 9967 0.2 12539 0.2

Income before provision for

income taxes 69474 1.5 62531 1.5 139586 2.6

Provision for income taxes 27181 0.6 25089 0.6 52026 1.0

Net Income 42293 0.9 37442 0.9 87560 1.6

Net income attributable to

noncontrolling interests 295 165 160
Net Income attributable to

Graybar Electric Company Inc 41998 0.9% 37277 0.9% 87400 1.6%

2010 Compared to 2009

Net sales totaled $4616377 for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to $4377882 for the year

ended December 31 2009 an increase of $238495 or 5.4% Net sales to the electrical and commldata market

sectors during the year ended December 31 2010 increased 3.1% and 11.4% respectively compared to the year

ended December 31 2009

Gross margin increased $11691 or 1.4% to $866641 from $854950 due to higher net sales for the year

ended December 31 2010 compared to the year ended December 31 2009 The Companys gross margin as

percent of net sales was 18.8% for the year ended December 31 2010 down from 19.5% in 2009 primarily due

to price competition and rising product costs

Selling general and administrative expenses increased $8102 or 1.1% to $753988 for the year ended

December 31 2010 compared to $745886 for the year ended December 31 2009 mainly due to higher employee

compensation costs Selling general and administrative expenses as percentage of net sales for the year

ended December 31 2010 were 16.3% down from 17.0% in 2009

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31 2010 increased $373 or 0.9% to

$39725 from $39352 for the year ended December 31 2009 This increase was due primarily to an increase in

information technology assets Depreciation and amortization expenses as percentage of net sales remained

flat at 0.9% for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to the year ended December 31 2009

Other income net consists primarily of gains on the disposal of property trade receivable interest charges to

customers and other miscellaneous income items related to the Companys business activities Other income
net totaled $4608 for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to $2786 for the year ended December 31
2009 Gains on the sale of real and personal property net of losses were $1177 for the year ended December

31 2010 compared to gains on the disposal of property of $524 for the year ended December 31 2009 Other

income net for the year ended December 31 2009 included property impairment losses of $576 primarily

on assets that were held for sale
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Income from operations totaled $77536 for the year ended December 31 2010 an increase of $5038 or

6.9% from $72498 for the year ended December 31 2009 The increase was due to higher net sales gross

margin and other income net partially offset by increases in selling general and administrative expenses and

depreciation and amortization expenses

Interest expense net declined $1905 or 19.1% to $8062 for the year ended December 31 2010 from

$9967 for the year ended December 31 2009 This reduction was mainly due to lower level of outstanding

long-term debt during the year ended December 31 2010 compared to 2009

The increase in income from operations and lower interest expense net resulted in income before provision

for income taxes of $69474 for the year ended December 31 2010 an increase of $6943 or 11.1% compared to

$62531 for the year ended December 31 2009

The Companys total provision for income taxes increased $2092 or 8.3% to $27181 for the year ended

December 31 2010 from $25089 for the year ended December 31 2009 as result of higher income before

provision for income taxes The Companys effective tax rate was 39.1% for the year ended December 31 2010

down from 40.1% for the year ended December 31 2009 The effective tax rates for the years ended December

31 2010 and 2009 were higher than the 35.0% US federal statutory rate primarily due to state and local

income taxes

Net income attributable to Graybar Electric Company Inc for the year ended December 31 2010 increased

$4721 or 12.7% to $41998 from $37277 for the year ended December 31 2009

2009 Compared to 2008

Net sales totaled $4377882 for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to $5400154 for the year

ended December 31 2008 decrease of $1022272 or 18.9% Net sales to the electrical and commldata market

sectors during the year ended December 31 2009 decreased 20.8% and 15.7% respectively compared to the

year ended December 31 2008

Gross margin decreased $190269 or 18.2% to $854950 from $1045219 due to lower net sales for the

year ended December 31 2009 compared to the year ended December 31 2008 The Companys gross margin

as percent of net sales was 19.5% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to 19.3% in 2008

Selling general and administrative expenses decreased $112084 or 13.1% to $745886 for the year ended

December 31 2009 compared to $857970 for the year ended December 31 2008 mainly due to lower employee

compensation and benefit costs Selling general and administrative expenses as percentage of net sales for

the year ended December 31 2009 were 17.0% up from 15.9% in 2008

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31 2009 increased $1372 or 3.6% to

$39352 from $37980 for the year ended December 31 2008 This increase was due primarily to an increase in

information technology assets Depreciation and amortization expenses as percentage of net sales increased

to 0.9% for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to 0.7% of net sales for the year ended December 31

2008

Other income net consists primarily of gains on the disposal of property trade receivable interest charges to

customers and other miscellaneous income items related to the Companys business activities Other income

net totaled $2786 for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to $2856 for the year ended December 31

2008 Other income net includes property impairment losses of $576 for the year ended December 31 2009

compared to property impairment losses of $340 in the prior year The impairment losses were primarily on

assets that were held for sale and expected to be disposed of within twelve months Gains on the sale of real

and personal property net of losses were $524 for the year ended December 31 2009 compared to losses on

the disposal of property of $108 for the year ended December 31 2008

Income from operations totaled $72498 for the year ended December 31 2009 decrease of $79627 or

52.3% from $152125 for the year ended December 31 2008 The decrease was due to lower net sales and

gross margin higher depreciation and amortization expenses and lower other income net partially offset by

decreases in selling general and administrative expenses

Interest expense net declined $2572 or 20.5% to $9967 for the year ended December 31 2009 from

$12539 for the year ended December 31 2008 This reduction was mainly due to lower level of outstanding
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long-term debt during the year ended December 31 2009 compared to 2008

The decrease in income from operations and lower interest expense net resulted in income before provision

for income taxes of $62531 for the year ended December 31 2009 decrease of $77055 or 55.2% compared
to $139586 for the year ended December 31 2008

The Companys total provision for income taxes decreased $26937 or 51.8% to $25089 for the year ended

December 31 2009 from $52026 for the year ended December 31 2008 as result of lower income before pro
vision for income taxes The Companys effective tax rate increased to 40.1% for the year ended December 31

2009 up from 37.3% for the year ended December 31 2008 The Company settled income tax-related issues

during the year ended December 31 2008 and approximately $2600 of unrecognized tax benefits related to

uncertain tax positions were released producing lower effective tax rate for that period The effective tax

rates for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 were higher than the 35.0% US federal statutory rate

primarily due to state and local income taxes

Net income attributable to Graybar Electric Company Inc for the year ended December 31 2009 decreased

$50123 or 57.3% to $37277 from $87400 for the year ended December 31 2008

Financial Condition and Liquidity

The Company has historically funded its working capital requirements using cash flows generated by the

collection of trade receivables and trade accounts payable terms with its suppliers supplemented by short-

term bank lines of credit Capital assets are financed primarily by common stock sales to the Companys
employees and long-term debt

Cash Flow Information

For the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Net cash used provided by operations $1O240 $114365 $148628
Net cash used by investing activities 29120 25012 45045
Net cash used by financing activities 42148 55932 39307
Net Decrease Increase in Cash $81508 33421 64276

Operating Activities

Net cash used by operations was $10240 for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to net cash pro
vided by operations of $114365 for the year ended December 31 2009 Negative cash flows from operations

for the year ended December 31 2010 were primarily attributable to increases in trade receivables of $100812

and merchandise inventory of $80728 resulting from accelerating net sales growth during the second half of

2010 partially offset by increases in trade accounts payable of $69076 and accrued payroll and benefit costs

of $28572

Trade receivables increased during 2010 due primarily to 5.4% increase in net sales for the year ended

December 31 2010 compared to the year ended December 31 2009 As result of this sales increase the

average number of days of sales outstanding at December 31 2010 measured using annual sales increased

significantly compared to the average number of days at December 31 2009 Average days of sales outstanding

for the three month period ended December 31 2010 increased modestly compared to the same three month

period of 2009 Average inventory turnover decreased significantly for the year ended December 31 2010 com
pared to the same period of 2009 Merchandise inventory turnover for the three month period ended December

31 2010 declined moderately compared to the same three month period of 2009

Current assets exceeded current liabilities by $415724 at December 31 2010 decrease of $9269 or

2.2% from $424993 at December 31 2009

Investing Activities

Net cash used by investing activities totaled $29120 for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to

$25012 for the year ended December 31 2009 Capital expenditures for property were $33624 and $27263
and proceeds from the disposal of property were $3880 and $1633 for the years ended December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively The proceeds received resulted primarily from the sale of real property in 2010 and 2009
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Cash received from the Companys investment in affiliated company was $624 and $618 for the years ended

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively and relates to the Companys membership in Graybar Financial

Services LLC

Financing Activities

Net cash used by financing activities totaled $42148 for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to

$55932 for the year ended December 31 2009

Cash provided by short-term borrowings was $4463 for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to

cash used to decrease short-term borrowings of $5217 for the year ended December 31 2009 The Company

made payments on long-term debt including current portion of $32160 and capital lease obligations of $1968

during the year ended December 31 2010 The Company made payments on long-term debt including current

portion of $32085 and capital lease obligations of $801 during the year ended December 31 2009

Cash provided by the sale of common stock amounted to $9799 and $11392 and purchases of treasury

stock were $10448 and $11901 for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Cash paid to

purchase noncontrolling interest stock was $151 and $109 and there was no cash provided by the sale of non-

controlling interest stock for the year ended December 31 2010 compared to $464 for the year ended December

31 2009 Cash dividends paid were $20211 and $17675 for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively

Cash and cash equivalents were $82356 at December 31 2010 decrease of $81508 or 49.7% from

$163864 at December 31 2009

Liquidity

The Company has revolving credit agreement with group of thirteen banks at an interest rate based on

the London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR that consists of an unsecured $200000 five-year facility expiring

in May 2012 There were no amounts outstanding under this credit agreement at December 31 2010 and 2009

At December 31 2009 the Company had $100000 trade receivable securitization program that was

scheduled to expire in October 2010 Prior to expiration the Company amended the trade receivable secu

ritization program agreement effective as of October 2010 to extend the program to October 2011 The

trade receivable securitization program provides for the sale of certain of the Companys trade receivables on

revolving basis to Graybar Commerce Corporation GCC wholly-owned bankruptcy-remote special-

purpose subsidiary GCC sells an undivided interest in the trade receivables to an unrelated multi-seller

commercial paper conduit In the event that dislocation in the market for the conduits receivables-backed

commercial paper develops and the conduit is unable to purchase the undivided interest offered by GCC the

agent bank for the trade receivable securitization program is obligated to purchase the undivided interest in

the trade receivables from GCC under the terms of the program

The Company accounts for the securitization as an on-balance sheet financing arrangement because the

Company has maintained effective control of the trade receivables through call option that gives GCC the

unilateral right to repurchase the undivided interests Accordingly the trade receivables and related debt are

included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets GCC has granted security interest in its trade

receivables to the commercial paper conduit There were no borrowings outstanding under the trade receivable

securitization program at December 31 2010 and 2009

At December 31 2010 the Company had available to it unused lines of credit amounting to $307308 com
pared to $310504 at December 31 2009 These lines are available to meet the short-term cash requirements

of the Company and certain committed lines of credit have annual fees of up to 67 basis points 0.67% and 92

basis points 0.92% of the committed lines of credit as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Short-term borrowings outstanding during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 ranged from

minimum of $10786 and $11189 to maximum of $20962 and $65858 respectively Short-term borrowings

outstanding at December 31 2010 and 2009 totaled $19695 and $15232 respectively and were drawn by the

Companys Canadian subsidiary against bank line of credit secured by all personal property of that subsidiary
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The revolving credit agreement the trade receivable securitization program and certain other note agree

ments contain various covenants that limit the Companys ability to make investments pay dividends incur

debt dispose of property and issue equity securities The Company is also required to maintain certain finan

cial ratios as defined in the agreements The Company was in compliance with all covenants under these

agreements as of December 31 2010 and 2009

The Company has lease agreement with an independent lessor which provides $28720 of financing for

five of the Companys distribution facilities The agreement carries five-year term expiring July 2013 The

financing structure used with this lease qualifies as silo of variable interest entity In accordance with US

GAAF the Company as the primary beneficiary consolidates the silo in its financial statements

As of December 31 2010 the consolidated silo included in the Companys consolidated financial statements

had net property balance of $15775 long-term debt of $27715 and noncontrolling interest of $1005 At

December 31 2009 the consolidated silo included in the Companys consolidated financial statements had

net property balance of $16299 long-term debt of $27715 and noncontrolling interest of $1005

Under the terms of the lease agreement the amount guaranteed by the Company as the residual fair value

of the property subject to the lease arrangement was $28720 at December 31 2010 and 2009

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The Company has the following contractual obligations as of December 31 2010

Payments due by period

2012 2014

and and After

Contractual obligations Total 2011 2013 2015 2015

Long-term debt obligations $102907 35107 $57521 $10279

Capital lease obligations 6951 3007 3371 573

Operating lease obligations 96875 19640 29214 18033 29988

Purchase obligations 542669 542669

Total $749402 $600423 $90106 $28885 $29988

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations consist of both principal and interest payments

Purchase obligations consist of open purchase orders issued in the normal course of business Many of

these purchase obligations may be cancelled with limited or no financial penalties

The table above does not include $63616 of accrued unfunded pension cost $88044 of accrued unfunded

employment-related benefits cost of which $79762 is related to the Companys postretirement benefit plan

and $3843 in contingent payments for uncertain tax positions because it is not certain when these obligations

will be settled or paid

The Company also expects to make contributions totaling approximately $40800 to its defined benefit

pension plan during 2011 that are not included in the table The Company contributed $40763 to its defined

benefit pension plan in 2010

Critical Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with US GAAP which require the

Company to make estimates and assumptions see Note in notes to the consolidated financial statements

located in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K The

Company believes the following accounting policies have the potential to have more significant impact on its

financial statements either because of the significance of the financial statement item to which they relate or

because they involve higher degree of judgment and complexity
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when evidence of customer arrangement exists prices are fixed and determinable

product title ownership and risk of loss transfers to the customer and collectability is reasonably assured
Revenues recognized are primarily for product sales but also include freight and handling charges The

Companys standard shipping terms are FOB shipping point under which product title passes to the customer

at the time of shipment The Company does however fulfill some customer orders based on shipping terms of

FOB destination whereby title passes to the customer at the time of delivery The Company also earns revenue

for services provided to customers for supply chain management and logistics services Service revenue which

accounts for less than one percent 1% of net sales is recognized when services are rendered and completed
Revenue is reported net of all taxes assessed by governmental authorities as result of revenue-producing

transactions primarily sales tax

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and significant portion of its trade

receivables is secured by mechanics lien or payment bond rights The Company maintains allowances to

reflect the expected uncollectability of trade receivables based on past collection history the economic environ

ment and specific risks identified in the receivables portfolio Although actual credit losses have historically

been within managements expectations additional allowances may be required if the financial condition of the

Companys customers were to deteriorate

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities to reflect the future tax consequences of events

that have been recognized in the financial statements or tax returns Uncertainty exists regarding tax posi

tions taken in previously filed tax returns still subject to examination and positions expected to be taken in

future returns deferred tax asset or liability results from the temporary difference between an items carry
ing value as reflected in the financial statements and its tax basis and is calculated using enacted applicable

tax rates The Company assesses the likelihood that its deferred tax assets will be recovered from future

taxable income and to the extent it believes that recovery is not likely valuation allowance is established

Changes in the valuation allowance when recorded are included in the provision for income taxes in the con
solidated financial statements The Company classifies interest expense and penalties as part of its provision

for income taxes based upon applicable federal and state interest/underpayment percentages

Merchandise Inventory

The Company values its inventories at the lower of cost determined using the last-in first-out LIFO
cost method or market LIFO accounting is method of accounting that compared with other inventory

accounting methods generally provides better matching of current costs with current revenues In assessing

the ultimate realization of inventories the Company makes judgments as to its return rights to suppliers and

future demand requirements If actual future demand market conditions or supplier return provisions are

less favorable than those projected by management additional inventory write-downs may be required

Pension and Postretirement Benefits Plans

The Companys pension and postretirement benefits obligations and expenses are determined based on the

selection of certain assumptions developed by the Company and used by actuaries in calculating such amounts
For the Companys pension obligation the most significant assumptions are the expected long-term rate of

return on plan assets and the discount rate used to discount plan liabilities For the Companys postretirement

benefits plan liability the most significant assumption is the interest rate used to discount the plan obligations
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The following tables present key assumptions used to measure the pension and postretirement benefit

obligation at December 31

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.50% 5.75% 4.75% 5.00%

Expected return on plan assets 6.25% 6.25%

While management believes that the assumptions selected by the Company are appropriate differences

in actual experience or changes in assumptions may affect the Companys pension and postretirement benefits

obligations and future pension and postretirement benefits expense For example holding all other assump
tions constant one percent 1% decrease in the discount rate used to calculate both pension expense for 2010

and the pension liability as of December 31 2010 would have increased pension expense by $3934 and the pen
sion liability by $37989 respectively Similarly one percent 1% decrease in the discount rate would have

increased 2010 postretirement benefits expense by $138 and the December 31 2010 postretirement benefits

liability by $6292

decrease in the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets could result in higher pension expense

and increase or accelerate the Companys contributions to the defined benefit pension plan in future years As

an example holding all other assumptions constant one percent 1% decrease in the assumed rate of return

on plan assets would have increased 2010 pension expense by $3501

Supplier Volume Incentives

The Companys agTeements with many of its suppliers provide for the Company to earn volume incen

tives based on purchases during the agreement period These agreements typically provide for the incentives

to be paid quarterly or annually in arrears The Company estimates amounts to be received from suppliers

at the end of each reporting period based on the earnout level that the Company believes is probable of being

achieved The Company records the incentive ratably over the year as reduction of cost of merchandise sold

as the related inventory is sold Changes in the estimated amount of incentives are treated as changes in

estimate and are recognized in earnings in the period in which the change in estimate occurs In the event

that the operating performance of the Companys suppliers were to decline however there can be no assur

ance that amounts earned would be paid or that the volume incentives would continue to be included in future

agreements

New Accounting Standards

No new accounting standards that were issued or became effective during 2010 have had or are expected

to have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In January 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2010-06 Improving Disclosures

about Fair Value Measurements The Update amends the guidance on fair value measurements that requires

companies to disclose separately the amount of significant transfers in and out of Level and Level fair

value measurements and describe the reasons for the transfers In addition the Update requires companies
to present separately information about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the reconciliation for

fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs that is Level assets in the fair value hier

archy The disclosures related to Level and Level fair value measurements are effective for interim and

annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2009 while the disclosures related to Level assets are

effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2010 The Company adopted

this standard as of January 2010 except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settle

ments in the rollforward activity in Level fair value measurements These disclosures had no impact on the

Companys results of operations financial position or cash flows

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education

Reconciliation Act of 2010

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of
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2010 collectively the Acts were enacted by the US Congress in March 2010 The Acts have both short- and

long-term implications for benefit plan standards Implementation of this legislation is planned to occur in

phases with some plan standard changes taking effect beginning in 2010 and other changes becoming effective

through 2018

In the short term the Companys healthcare costs are expected to increase due to the Acts raising of the

maximum eligible age for covered dependents to receive benefits the elimination of the lifetime dollar limits

per covered individual and restrictions on annual dollar limits on essential benefits per covered individual

among other standard requirements In the long term the Companys healthcare costs may increase due to the

enactment of the excise tax on high cost healthcare plans

The Company continues to evaluate the impact if any the Acts will have on its financial statements as new

regulations under the Acts are issued The Company expects the general trend in healthcare costs to continue

to rise and the effects of the Acts and any future legislation could materially impact the cost of providing

healthcare benefits for many employers including the Company

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices including interest

rates foreign currency exchange rates commodity prices and equity prices The Companys primary expo

sures to market risk are interest rate risk associated with debt obligations foreign currency exchange rate risk

and commodity risk

Interest Rate Risk

The Companys interest expense is sensitive to changes in the general level of interest rates Changes in

interest rates have different impacts on the fixed-rate and variable-rate portions of the Companys debt port

folio change in market interest rates on the fixed-rate portion of the debt portfolio impacts the fair value of

the financial instrument but has no impact on interest incurred or cash flows change in market interest

rates on the variable-rate portion of the debt portfolio impacts the interest incurred and cash flows but does

not impact the fair value of the financial instrument To mitigate the cash flow impact of interest rate fluctua

tions on the cost of financing its capital assets the Company generally maintains significant portion of its

long-term debt as fixed-rate in nature

Based on $56074 in variable-rate debt outstanding at December 31 2010 one percent 1% increase in

interest rates would increase the Companys interest expense by $561 per annum

The following table provides information about financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in inter

est rates The table presents principal payments on debt and related weighted-average interest rates by

expected maturity dates

December 31 2010

After Fair

Debt Instruments 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 Total Value

Long-term
fixed-rate debt $31756 13514 12580 831 1990 $60671 $57856

Weighted-average

interest rate 6.85% 6.15% 6.06% 4.54% 5.57%

Long-term

variable-rate debt $435 435 28150 435 6924 $36379 $36379

Weighted-average

interest rate 4.25% 4.25% 1.88% 4.25% 4.25%

Short-term variable

rate borrowings $19695 $19695 $19695

Weighted-average

interest rate 3.35%

20



The fair value of long-term debt is estimated by discounting cash flows using current borrowing rates avail

able for debt of similarmaturities

The Company entered into swap agreement to manage interest rates on amounts due under leveraged

lease arrangement in September 2000 The swap agreement which expires in July 2013 is based on notional

amount of $28720 The agreement calls for an exchange of interest payments with the Company being paid

LIBOR-based floating rate and paying fixed rate of 6.92% There is no exchange of the notional amount

upon which the payments are based The fair value of the swap agreement at December 31 2010 and 2009 was

approximately $4706 and $4969 respectively The negative value of this agreement reflects the current low

level of interest rates compared to market interest rates in September 2000 when the agreement was entered

into one percent 1% increase in LIBOR for all maturities through July 2013 would have increased the fair

value of the swap agreement by approximately $866 and $902 as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

The functional currency for the Companys Canadian subsidiary is the Canadian dollar Accordingly its

balance sheet amounts are translated at the exchange rates in effect at year-end and its income and expenses

are translated using average exchange rates prevailing during the year Currency translation adjustments are

included in accumulated other comprehensive loss Exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations

is not material

Commodity Risk

The Company has moderate level of primary exposure to commodity price risk on wire and cable steel

conduit and many other products that contain copper or steel or both Graybar does not purchase commodities

directly however

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as of and for the

year ended December 31 2010 included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for such period as filed with the

SEC should be read in conjunction with our accompanying audited consolidated financial statements and the

notes thereto

Certain statements other than purely historical information including estimates projections statements

relating to the Companys business plans objectives and expected operating results and the assumptions

upon which those statements are based are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private

Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 These forward-looking statements generally are identified by the words

believes projects expects anticipates estimates intends strategy plan may will would
will be will continue will likely result and similar expressions The Company intends such forward-

looking statements to be covered by the safe-harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in

the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking statements are based on current expec

tations and assumptions that are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ

materially from the forward-looking statements The Companys ability to predict results or the actual effect

of future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain Factors which could have material adverse impact on

the Companys operations and future prospects on consolidated basis include but are not limited to general

economic conditions particularly in the residential commercial and industrial building construction indus

tries volatility in the prices of industrial metal commodities disruptions in the Companys sources of supply

sustained interruption in the operation of the Companys information systems adverse legal proceedings or

other claims and the inability or limitations on the Companys ability to raise debt or equity capital These

risks and uncertainties should also be considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance

should not be placed on such statements The Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise publicly

any forward-looking statements whether as result of new information future events or otherwise Further

information concerning our business including additional factors that could materially impact our financial

results is included herein and in our other filings with the SEC Actual results and the timing of events could

differ materially from the forward-looking statements as result of certain factors number of which are out

lined in Item 1A Risk Factors of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2010
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Eli ERNSTYOUNG
Suite 1300

190 Carondelet Plaza

St Louis MO 63105-3434

Tel 1314290 1000

Fax 314 290 1882

www.ey.com

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Graybar Electric Company Inc and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Graybar Electric Company
Inc and Subsidiaries The Company as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and the related

consolidated statements of income shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended December 31 2010 These financial statements are the responsibility of

the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting

as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining

on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management and

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of Graybar Electric Company Inc and Subsidiaries at

December 31 2010 and 2009 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2010 in conformity with U.S

generally accepted accounting principles

March 2011

1102-1231361 23
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Graybar Electric Company Inc and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Stated in thousands except per share data

Net Sales

Cost of merchandise sold

Gross Margin

Selling general and administrative expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Other income net

Income from Operations

Interest expense net

Income before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net Income

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net Income attributable to Graybar Electric Company Inc

Net Income attributable to Graybar Electric Company Inc

per share of Common Stock

For the Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008

4616377 4377882 5400154
3749736 3522932 4354935

866641 854950 1045219
753988 745886 857970
39725 39352 37980

4608 2786 2856

77536 72498 152125

8062 9967 12539
69474 62531 139586

27181 25089 52026
42293 37442 87560

295 165 160

41998 37277 87400

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.61 3.18 7.51

Adjusted for the declaration of ten percent 10% stock dividend in December 2010 shares related to which were issued in February 2011 Prior to the

adjustment the average common shares outstanding were 10644 and 10579 for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively
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82356
678212
390350

15891

1166809

49890
349781
176814
76906
10214

663605
362793

300812
51817

$1519438

163864
577400

309622
27353

1078239

47743

337781
172753

76906
5205

640388

336686

303702

50012

$1431953

LIABILITIES

Shares at December 31

Capital Stock 2010 2009

Common stated value $20.00 per share

Authorized 20000000 15000000
Issued to voting trustees 9498347 8638604
Issued to shareholders 2148384 1984686

In treasury at cost 26755 24808

Outstanding Common Stock 11619976 10598482 232400 211970

Common shares subscribed 565844 502875 11317 10058

Less subscriptions receivable 565844 502875 11317 10058

Retained Earnings 423602 423920

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 102343 102599

________
Total Graybar Electric Company Inc Shareholders Equity 553659 533291

Noncontrolling Interests
_______

5148 4878

Total Shareholders Equity 558807 538169

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity $1519438 1431953

Graybar Electric Company Inc and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Stated in thousands except share and per share data

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables less allowances of $7299 and $6217 respectively

Merchandise inventory

Other current assets

December 31

2010 2009

Total Current Assets

Property at cost

Land

Buildings

Furniture and fixtures

Software

Capital leases

Total Property at cost

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Net Property

Other Non-current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Current portion of long-term debt

Trade accounts payable

Accrued payroll and benefit costs

Other accrued taxes

Dividends payable

Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Postretirement Benefits Liability

Pension Liability

Long-term Debt
Other Non-current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

19695
32191

520355
95511

15248
11686
56399

751085

72462
62816
64859
9409

960631

15232

36068
451279

66939
15378

10660

57690

653246

66336
77699

80959

15544

893784

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Graybar Electric Company Inc and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED_STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31
Stated in thousands

_______________________
2010 2009 2008

Cash Flows from Operations
Net Income 42293 37442 87560

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided

by operations

Depreciation and amortization 39725 39352 37980
Deferred income taxes 10627 941 1654
Net gains losses on disposal of property 1177 524 108

Losses on impairment of property 576 340

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 295 165 160
Changes in assets and liabilities

Trade receivables

Merchandise inventory

Other current assets

Other non-current assets

Trade accounts payable

Accrued payroll and benefit costs

Other current liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total adjustments to net income

Net cash used provided by operations

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Proceeds from disposal of property 3880 1633 448

Capital expenditures for property 33624 27263 46121
Investment in affiliated company 624 618 628

Net cash used by investing activities 29120 25012 45045

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net increase decrease in short-term borrowings 4463 5217 1248

Repayment of long-term debt 32160 32085 31894
Proceeds from long-term debt 8528 4009
Principal payments under capital leases 1968 801 451
Sales of common stock 9799 11392 10866
Purchases of treasury stock 10448 11901 8413
Sales of noncontrolling interests common stock 464

Purchases of noncontrolling interests common stock 151 109 99
Dividends paid 20211 17675 14573

Net cash used by financing activities 42148 55932 39307
Net Decrease Increase in Cash 81508 33421 64276

Cash Beginning of Year 163864 130443 66167

Cash End of Year 82356 $163864 $130443

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities

Acquisition of equipment under capital leases 5009 2792
Cash Paid During the Year for

Interest net of amounts capitalized 8562 10470 13527
Income taxes net of refunds 15037 19965 44656

100812
80728
11462

2429
69076

28572

11662
14892
52533
10240

82378

64191

3520

1397
60218
53645
13529

11615

76923

114365

43091

23263

10738
12048
3538
3301

13397
8788

61068

148628

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Fucancial Statements are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Graybar Electric Company Inc and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Graybar Electric Company Inc

Shareholders Equity

Accumulated
Other Total

Common Retained Comprehensive Noncontrolling Shareholders

Stated in thousands Stock Earnings Loss Interests Equity

Balance December 31 2007 $158633 $386217 65899 $4428 $483379

Net income 87400 160 87560

Foreign currency translation 8839 561 9400
Unrealized loss from

interest rate swap

net of tax of $906 1423 1423
Pension and postretirement

benefits liability adjustment

net of tax of $24644 38708 38708

Comprehensive income 38029

Stock issued 10866 10866
Stock purchased 8413 99 8512
Dividends declared 32170 48341 16171

Balance December 31 2008 193256 $425276 114869 $3928 $507591

Net income 37277 165 37442

Foreign currency translation 6955 430 7385

Unrealized gain from

interest rate swap

net of tax of $557 875 875

Pension and postretirement

benefits liability adjustment

net of tax of $2827 4440 4440

Comprehensive income 50142

Stock issued 11392 464 11856
Stock purchased 11901 109 12010
Dividends declared 19223 38633 19410
Balance December 31 2009 $211970 $423920 $102599 $4878 $538169

Net income 41998 295 42293

Foreign currency translation 2681 126 2807
Unrealized gain from

interest rate swap
net of tax of $102 161 161

Pension and postretirement

benefits liability adjustment

net of tax of $1646 2586 2586
Comprehensive income 42675

Stock issued 9799 9799
Stock purchased 10448 151 10599
Dividends declared 21079 42316 21237

Balance December 31 2010 $232400 $423602 $102343 $5148 $558807

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ace an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Graybar Electric Company Inc and Subsidiaries

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as of December 31 2010 and 2009 and for the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Stated in thousands except share and per share data

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Graybar Electric Company Inc Graybar or the Company is New York corporation incorporated in

1925 The Company is engaged in the distribution of electrical communications and data networking comml
data products and the provision of related supply chain management and logistics services primarily to elec

trical and comm/data contractors industrial plants federal state and local governments commercial users

telephone companies and power utilities in North America All products sold by the Company are purchased

by the Company from others The Companys business activity is primarily with customers in the United

States of America US Graybar also has subsidiary operations with distribution facilities in Canada and

Puerto Rico

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Companys significant accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the

US US GAAP and are applied on consistent basis among all years presented and are described below

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Graybar Electric Company Inc and its sub

sidiary companies All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated The owner

ship interests that are held by owners other than the Company in subsidiaries consolidated by the Company
are accounted for and reported as noncontrolling interests

In accordance with the accounting standards issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB
in December 2007 and contained in the FASBs Accounting Standards Codification ASC or the Codification
effective January 2009 the Companys minority interests were recharacterized as noncontrolling interests

and are reported as separate component of shareholders equity No purchases or sales of equity interests

resulted in change in control and such transactions were therefore accounted for as equity transactions

Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests is separately identified in the consolidated statements

of income

The Company has reclassified its noncontrolling interests to shareholders equity for all periods presented

The Company also adjusted its net income to include the net income attributable to the noncontrolling inter

ests Consolidated comprehensive income was also adjusted to include the comprehensive income attributable

to the noncontrolling interests

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year financial information to conform to the December

31 2010 presentation

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the time of the filing of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission SEC or the Commission No
material subsequent events have occurred since December 31 2010 that require recognition or disclosure in

these financial statements

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when evidence of customer arrangement exists prices are fixed and determinable

product title ownership and risk of loss transfers to the customer and collectability is reasonably assured

Revenues recognized are primarily for product sales but also include freight and handling charges The
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Companys standard shipping terms are FOB shipping point under which product title passes to the customer

at the time of shipment The Company does however fulfill some customer orders based on shipping terms of

FOB destination whereby title passes to the customer at the time of delivery The Company also earns revenue

for services provided to customers for supply chain management and logistics services Service revenue which

accounts for less than one percent 1% of net sales is recognized when services are rendered and completed

Revenue is reported net of all taxes assessed by governmental authorities as result of revenue-producing

transactions primarily sales tax

Outgoing Freight Expenses

The Company records certain outgoing freight expenses as component of selling general and administra

tive expenses These costs totaled $35683 $32947 and $47574 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009

and 2008 respectively

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management to make esti

mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses and the

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities Actual results could differ from these estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company accounts for cash on hand deposits in banks and other short-term highly liquid invest

ments with an original maturity of three months or less as cash and cash equivalents

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and significant portion of its trade

receivables is secured by mechanics lien or payment bond rights The Company maintains allowances to

reflect the expected uncollectability of trade receivables based on past collection history the economic environ

ment and specific risks identified in the receivables portfolio Although actual credit losses have historically

been within managements expectations additional allowances may be required if the financial condition of the

Companys customers were to deteriorate

The following table summarizes the activity in the allowances for cash discounts and doubtful accounts

Provision

Beginning Charged to Ending
Balance Expense Deductions Balance

For the Year Ended December 31 2010

Allowance for cash discounts $1201 $17854 $17682 $1373

Allowance for doubtful accounts 5016 6401 5491 5926

Total $6217 $24255 $23173 $7299

For the Year Ended December 31 2009

Allowance for cash discounts $1515 $17836 $18150 $1201

Allowance for doubtful accounts 6048 7581 8613 5016

Total $7563 $25417 $26763 $6217

For the Year Ended December 31 2008

Allowance for cash discounts $1545 $22968 $22998 $1515
Allowance for doubtful accounts 6703 4453 5108 6048

Total $8248 $27421 $28106 $7563
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Merchandise Inventory

The Companys inventory is stated at the lower of cost determined using the last-in first-out LIFO cost

method or market LIFO accounting is method of accounting that compared with other inventory account

ing methods generally provides better matching of current costs with current revenues Had the first-in

first-out FIFO method been used merchandise inventory would have been approximately $129888 and

$107655 greater than reported under the LIFO method at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively In 2009

and 2008 the Company liquidated portions of previously created LIFO layers resulting in decreases in cost of

merchandise sold of $16685 and $4554 respectively The Company did not liquidate any portion of previ

ously created LIFO layers in 2010

The Company makes provisions for obsolete or slow-moving inventories as necessary to reflect reductions

in inventory value Reserves for excess and obsolete inventories were $4500 and $3900 at December 31
2010 and 2009 respectively The change in the reserves for excess and obsolete inventories included in cost

of merchandise sold was $600 $700 and $800 for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008
respectively

Supplier Volume Incentives

The Companys agreements with many of its suppliers provide for the Company to earn volume incen

tives based on purchases during the agreement period These agreements typically provide for the incentives

to be paid quarterly or annually in arrears The Company estimates amounts to be received from suppliers

at the end of each reporting period based on the earnout level that the Company believes is probable of being

achieved The Company records the incentive ratably over the year as reduction of cost of merchandise sold

as the related inventory is sold Changes in the estimated amount of incentives are treated as changes in

estimate and are recognized in earnings in the period in which the change in estimate occurs In the event

that the operating performance of the Companys suppliers were to decline however there can be no assur

ance that amounts earned would be paid or that the volume incentives would continue to be included in future

agreements

Property and Depreciation

The Company provides for depreciation and amortization using the straight-line method over the following

estimated useful asset lives

Classification Estimated Useful Asset Life

Buildings 42 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the assets life or the lease term

Furniture fixtures equipment and software to 14 years

Assets held under capital leases Over the shorter of the assets life or the lease term

Depreciation expense was $25273 $25222 and $25101 in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively

At the time property is retired or otherwise disposed of the asset and related accumulated depreciation

are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to other income net

Assets held under capital leases consisting primarily of information technology equipment are recorded in

property with the corresponding obligations carried in long-term debt The amount capitalized is the present

value at the beginning of the lease term of the aggregate future minimum lease payments Assets held under

leases which were capitalized during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 were $5009 and $2792
respectively

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred Major renewals and improvements that extend the life

of property are capitalized

The Company capitalizes interest expense on major construction and development projects while in prog
ress Interest capitalized in 2010 2009 and 2008 was $120 $269 and $82 respectively
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The Company capitalizes qualifying internal and external costs incurred to develop or obtain software for

internal use during the application development stage Costs incurred during the pre-application development
and post-implementation stages are expensed as incurred The Company capitalized software and software

development costs of $3375 and $3307 in 2010 and 2009 respectively and the amounts are recorded in fur

niture and fixtures

Unamortized software totaled $2487 and $12436 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The esti

mated useful life of capitalized software is eight years

The Company reviews long-lived assets held and used for impairment whenever events or changes in cir

cumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable For assets classified as to

be held and used impairment may occur if projected undiscounted cash flows are not adequate to cover the

carrying value of the assets In such cases additional analysis is conducted to determine the amount of the

loss to be recognized The impairment loss is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the

asset and its estimated fair value The analysis requires estimates of the amount and timing of projected cash

flows and where applicable selection of an appropriate discount rate Such estimates are critical in determin

ing whether any impairment charge should be recorded and the amount of such charge if an impairment loss

is deemed necessary For assets held for sale impairment occurs whenever the net book value of the property

listed for sale exceeds the expected selling price less estimated selling expenses

The Company did not record any impairment charges in 2010 The Company recorded impairment losses

totaling $576 and $340 to account for the expected losses on those assets to be held and used where the car

rying amount exceeded the estimated fair value of the assets and for the sale of properties classified as held

for sale for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The impairment losses are included in

other income net in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primar

ily of trade receivables The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and significant

portion of its trade receivables is secured by mechanics lien or payment bond rights The Company maintains

allowances for potential credit losses and such losses historically have been within managements expectations

Fair Value

The Company endeavors to utilize the best available information in measuring fair value US GAAP has
established fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value The tiers in the

hierarchy include Level defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets Level

defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable

and Level defined as unobservable inputs for which little or no market data exists therefore requiring an

entity to develop its own data inputs and assumptions The Company has used fair value measurements to

value its defined benefit pension plan assets and interest rate swap

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is party to an interest rate swap agreement that effectively converts its variable rate inter

est payments to fixed rate on amounts due under certain lease arrangement The Companys interest rate

swap agreement is designated as cash flow hedge and is required to be measured at fair value on recurring

basis

The Company endeavors to utilize the best available information in measuring fair value The interest rate

swap is valued based on quoted data from the counterparty corroborated with indirectly observable market

data which combined are deemed to be Level input in the fair value hierarchy At December 31 2010

and 2009 the Company recorded liability of $4706 and $4969 respectively in other current liabilities

on the consolidated balance sheet for the fair value of the swap The effective portion of the related gains or

losses on the swap is deferred in accumulated other comprehensive loss No ineffectiveness was recorded in

the consolidated statements of income during 2010 2009 and 2008 The loss net of tax reclassified from

accumulated other comprehensive loss to interest expense related to the effective portion of the interest rate

swap was $847 and $781 during the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively Unrealized gains
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losses net of tax of $161 $875 and $1423 related to the swap were recorded in accumulated other com

prehensive loss during the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively The amount of loss

net of tax expected to be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss to interest expense over the

next twelve months is $1159 At December 31 2010 and 2009 cumulative unrealized net losses related to

the swap of $2876 and $3037 net of tax were recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss These

deferred amounts are recognized in interest expense net in the period in which the related interest payments

being hedged are recognized in expense

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate

The functional currency for the Companys Canadian subsidiary is the Canadian dollar Accordingly its

balance sheet amounts are translated at the exchange rates in effect at year-end and its statements of income

amounts are translated at the average rates of exchange prevailing during the year Currency translation

adjustments are included in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Goodwill

The Companys goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized but rather tested annu

ally for impairment Goodwill is reviewed annually in the fourth quarter andlor when circumstances or other

events might indicate that impairment may have occurred The annual impairment test involves compari

son of the estimated fair value of reporting unit to its carrying amount The fair value is determined using

variety of assumptions including estimated future cash flows of the reporting unit and applicable discount

rates As of December 31 2010 the Company has completed its annual impairment test and concluded that

there is no impairment of the Companys goodwill At December 31 2010 and 2009 the Company had $6680

of goodwill included in other non-current assets in its consolidated balance sheets

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities to reflect the future tax consequences of events

that have been recognized in the financial statements or tax returns Uncertainty exists regarding tax posi

tions taken in previously filed tax returns still subject to examination and positions expected to be taken in

future returns deferred tax asset or liability results from the temporary difference between an items carry

ing value as reflected in the financial statements and its tax basis and is calculated using enacted applicable

tax rates The Company assesses the likelihood that its deferred tax assets will be recovered from future

taxable income and to the extent it believes that recovery is not likely valuation allowance is established

Changes in the valuation allowance when recorded are included in the provision for income taxes in the con

solidated financial statements The Company classifies interest expense and penalties as part of its provision

for income taxes based upon applicable federal and state interest/underpayment percentages

Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company accounts for postretirement benefits other than pensions by accruing the costs of benefits to

be provided over the employees period of active service These costs are determined on an actuarial basis The

Companys consolidated balance sheets reflect the funded status of postretirement benefits

Pension Plan

The Company sponsors noncontributory defined benefit pension plan accounted for by accruing the cost

to provide the benefits over the employees period of active service These costs are determined on an actuarial

basis The Companys consolidated balance sheets reflect the funded status of the defined benefit pension plan

Variable Interest Entities

Effective January 2010 the Company adopted new accounting guidance that modified the consolidation

model in previous guidance and expanded the disclosures related to variable interest entities VIE The

adoption of this new accounting guidance had no impact on the Companys financial statements

An entity is considered to be VIE if its total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity

to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support or if its equity investors as group
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lack the characteristics of having controlling financial interest reporting company is required to consoli

date VIE as its primary beneficiary when it has both the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most

significantly impact the VIEs economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive

benefits from the VIE that could potentially be significant to the VIE

The Company has lease agreement with an independent lessor that is considered to be VIE The agree
ment provides $28720 of financing for five of the Companys distribution facilities and carries five-year term

expiring July 2013 The financing structure used with this lease qualifies as silo of VIE Graybar as lessee

retains the power to direct the operational activities that most significantly impact the economic performance

of the VIE and has an obligation to absorb losses and the right to receive benefits from the sale of the real prop
erty held by the VIE lessor Therefore the Company is the primary beneficiary of this VIE and accordingly

consolidates the silo in its financial statements

New Accounting Standards

No new accounting standards that were issued or became effective during 2010 have had or are expected

to have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In January 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No 2010-06 Improving Disclosures

about Fair Value Measurements The Update amends the guidance on fair value measurements that requires

companies to disclose separately the amount of significant transfers in and out of Level and Level fair

value measurements and describe the reasons for the transfers In addition the Update requires companies
to present separately information about purchases sales issuances and settlements in the reconciliation for

fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs that is Level assets in the fair value hier

archy The disclosures related to Level and Level fair value measurements are effective for interim and

annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2009 while the disclosures related to Level assets are

effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15 2010 The Company adopted

this standard as of January 2010 except for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settle

ments in the rollforward activity in Level fair value measurements These disclosures had no impact on the

Companys results of operations financial position or cash flows

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education

Reconciliation Act of 2010

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of

2010 collectively the Acts were enacted by the US Congress in March 2010 The Acts have both short- and

long-term implications for benefit plan standards Implementation of this legislation is planned to occur in

phases with some plan standard changes taking effect beginning in 2010 and other changes becoming effective

through 2018

In the short term the Companys healthcare costs are expected to increase due to the Acts raising of the

maximum eligible age for covered dependents to receive benefits the elimination of the lifetime dollar limits

per covered individual and restrictions on annual dollar limits on essential benefits per covered individual

among other standard requirements In the long term the Companys healthcare costs may increase due to the

enactment of the excise tax on high cost healthcare plans

The Company continues to evaluate the impact if any the Acts will have on its financial statements as new
regulations under the Acts are issued The Company expects the general trend in healthcare costs to continue

to rise and the effects of the Acts and any future legislation could materially impact the cost of providing

healthcare benefits for many employers including the Company

INCOME TAXES

The Company determines its deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon the difference between the

financial statement and tax bases of its assets and liabilities calculated using enacted applicable tax rates

The Company then assesses the likelihood that its deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable

income and to the extent it believes that recovery is not likely valuation allowance is established Changes
in the valuation allowance when recorded are included in the provision for income taxes in the consolidated

financial statements
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The Companys unrecognized tax benefits of $3843 and $3754 as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respec

tively are uncertain tax positions that would impact the Companys effective tax rate if recognized The

Company is periodically engaged in tax return examinations reviews of statute of limitations periods and

settlements surrounding income taxes The Company does not anticipate material change in unrecognized

tax benefits during the next twelve months

The Companys uncertain tax benefits and changes thereto during 2010 and 2009 were as follows

______________________
2010 2009

Balance at January $3754 $3874
Additions based on tax positions related to current year 699 650

Additions based on tax positions of prior years 119

Reductions for tax positions of prior years 693 770
Settlements 36
Balance at December 31 $3843 $3754

The Company classifies interest expense and penalties as part of its provision for income taxes based upon

applicable federal and state interest/underpayment percentages The Company has accrued $1107 and $1103

in interest and penalties in its statement of financial position at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Interest was computed on the difference between the provision for income taxes recognized in accordance with

US GAAP and the amount of benefit previously taken or expected to be taken in the Companys federal state

and local income tax returns

The Companys federal income tax returns for the tax years 2007 and forward are available for examination

by the United States Internal Revenue Service IRS The Company closed an examination conducted by the

IRS of its 2007 federal income tax return during the fourth quarter of 2009 The results of this examination

were included in the 2009 provision for income taxes The examination outcome did not have material effect

on the Companys financial results or its effective tax rate The Company has not agreed to extend its federal

statute of limitations for the 2007 tax year as of December 31 2010 The federal statute of limitations for the

2007 tax year will expire on September 15 2011 The Companys state income tax returns for 2006 through

2010 remain subject to examination by various state authorities with the latest period closing on December

31 2015 The Company has not extended the statutes of limitations for any state jurisdictions with respect to

years prior to 2006 Such statutes of limitations will expire on or before November 15 2011 unless extended

The provisions for income taxes recorded in the consolidated statements of income are as follows

For the Year Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Federal income tax

Current $14366 $21633 $44127

Deferred 9428 777 4930

State income tax

Current 2189 2515 6245

Deferred 1198 164 3276
Provision for income taxes $27181 $25089 $52026
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Deferred income taxes are provided based upon differences between the financial statement and tax bases

of assets and liabilities The following deferred tax assets liabilities were recorded at December 31

Assets Liabilities 2010 2009

Postretirement benefits $31027 $29837

Payroll accruals 2577 3176
Bad debt reserves 2544 2132
Other deferred tax assets 13472 11709

Pension 19092 24716

Inventory 3098

Subtotal 68712 74668

less valuation allowances 2778 2492
Deferred tax assets 65934 72176

Fixed assets 22098 17212
Inventory 1744
Computer software 968 4837
Other deferred tax liabilities 4521 4482

Deferred tax liabilities 29331 26531

Net deferred tax assets $36603 $45645

Deferred tax assets included in other current assets were $1838 and $14126 at December 31 2010 and

2009 respectively Deferred tax assets included in other non-current assets were $34765 and $31519 at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The Companys deferred tax assets include foreign net operating

losses of $517 and $231 as of December 31 2010 and 2009 that expire in 2017 and 2016 respectively The

Companys deferred tax assets also include state net operating loss carryforwards of $2819 and $2091 as of

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively that expire between 2010 and 2030 The Companys deferred tax

assets also include capital loss carryforwards of $2261 and $2261 as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respec

tively that expire in 2014 Due to uncertainty surrounding their ultimate utilization full valuation allowances

against these foreign net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards have been established

reconciliation between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax rate in the consoli

dated statements of income is as follows

For the Years Ended December 31 2010 2009 2008

Statutory federal tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

State and local income taxes

net of federal benefit 2.7 2.3 1.5

Other net 1.4 2.8 0.8

Effective tax rate 39.1% 40.1% 37.3%

CAPITAL STOCK

The Companys capital stock is one hundred percent 100% owned by its active and retired employees and

there is no public trading market for its common stock Shares of common stock or the voting trust interests

issued with respect thereto common stock common shares or shares may not be sold by the holder

thereof except after first offering them to the Company The Company may buy any common shares so offered

at the price at which they were issued $20.00 per share with appropriate adjustments for current dividends

At the Companys annual meeting of shareholders on June 10 2010 the shareholders approved an amend
ment to the Companys Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of

common stock from 15000000 to 20000000 shares The amendment was effective August 2010

During 2010 the Company offered to eligible employees and qualified retirees the right to subscribe

to 841500 shares of common stock at $20.00 per share in accordance with the provisions of the Companys
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Three-Year Common Stock Purchase Plan dated June 10 2010 This resulted in the subscription of 565844
shares $11317 Subscribers under the Plan elected to make payments under one of the following options

all shares subscribed for on or before January 14 2011 or ii all shares subscribed for in installments paid

through payroll deductions or in certain cases where subscriber is no longer on the Companys payroll

through direct monthly payments over an eleven-month period

Common shares were delivered to subscribers as of January 14 2011 in the case of shares paid for prior

to January 14 2011 Shares will be issued and delivered to subscribers on quarterly basis as of the tenth

day of March June September and December to the extent full payments for shares are made in the case of

subscriptions under the installment method

Shown below is summary of shares purchased and retired by the Company during the three years ended

December 31

Shares of Common Stock

Purchased Retired

2010 522405 520458
2009 595073 602926

2008 420634 422454

The Company amended its Certificate of Incorporation to authorize new class of 10000000 shares of

Delegated Authority Preferred Stock preferred stock par value one cent $0.01 on June 10 2004 The

preferred stock may be issued in one or more series with the designations relative rights preferences and

limitations of shares of each such series being fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company
There were no shares of preferred stock outstanding at December 31 2010 and 2009

On December 2010 the Company declared ten percent 10% common stock dividend Each share

holder was entitled to one share of common stock for every ten shares held as of January 2011 The stock

was issued February 2011 On December 10 2009 the Company declared ten percent 10% common stock

dividend Each shareholder was entitled to one share of common stock for every ten shares held as of January
2010 The stock was issued on February 2010 On December 11 2008 the Company declared twenty

percent 20% common stock dividend Each shareholder was entitled to one share of common stock for every

five shares held as of January 2009 The stock was issued February 2009

NET INCOME PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK

The per share computations for periods presented have been adjusted to reflect the new number of shares

as of December 31 2010 as result of the stock dividend declared on December 2010 payable to sharehold

ers of record on January 2011 Shares representing this dividend were issued on February 2011 The

computation of net income per share of common stock is based on the average number of common shares out

standing during each year adjusted in all periods presented for the declaration of ten percent 10% stock

dividend declared in 2010 ten percent 10% stock dividend declared in 2009 and twenty percent 20%
stock dividend in 2008 The average number of shares used in computing net income per share of common
stock at December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 was 11646785 11708040 and 11636415 respectively
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LONG-TERM DEBT ANT BORROWINGS UNTER SHORT-TERM CREDIT AGREEMENTS

December 31

Long-term Debt 2010 2009

7.49% senior note unsecured due in annual installments of $14286 beginning in

July 2005 throughJuly 2011 $14286 28571

Variable rate lease arrangement secured by facilities due in July 2013 27715 27715

6.59% senior note unsecured due in semiannual installments of $3750 beginning

in October 2003 through April 2013 18750 26250

7.36% senior note unsecured due in semiannual installments of $3095 beginning

in May 2001 through November 2010 with final payment of $3094 due in

May2011 3094 9285

6.65% senior note unsecured due in annual installments of $3636 beginning

in June 2003 through June 2013 10909 14545

5.57% note secured by facility due in monthly installments of principal and

interest of $32 through December 2014 with final payment of $2000 due

in January 2015 2977 3041

5.79% note secured by facility due in monthly installments of principal and

interest of $37 through October 2013 with final payment of $3444 due in

November 2013 4083 4088

6.48% capital lease secured by equipment due in monthly installments of principal

and interest of $47 beginning in January 2007 through December 2011 544 1060

Variable rate note secured by facilities due in monthly installments of $36 through

October 2015 with final payment of $6583 due in November 2015 8664

2.64% to 4.97% capital leases secured by equipment various maturities 6028 2472

$97050 $117027

Less current portion 32191 36068

Long-term Debt 64859 80959

Long-term Debt matures as follows

2011 $32191

2012 13949

2013 40730

2014 1266

2015 8914
After 2015

$97050

The net book value of property securing various long-term debt instruments was $40429 and $28305 at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

The Companys borrowings under short-term credit agreements typically consist of issuances of commer

cial paper under the trade receivable securitization program and draws against both revolving credit agree

ment and bank lines of credit

The Company has revolving credit agreement with group of thirteen banks at an interest rate based on

the London Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR that consists of an unsecured $200000 five-year facility expiring

in May 2012 There were no amounts outstanding under this credit agreement at December 31 2010 and 2009

At December 31 2009 the Company had $100000 trade receivable securitization program that was

scheduled to expire in October 2010 Prior to expiration the Company amended the trade receivable secu

ritization program agreement effective as of October 2010 to extend the program to October 2011 The

trade receivable securitization program provides for the sale of certain of the Companys trade receivables on

revolving basis to Graybar Commerce Corporation GCC wholly-owned bankruptcy-remote special-

purpose subsidiary GCC sells an undivided interest in the trade receivables to an unrelated multi-seller

commercial paper conduit In the event that dislocation in the market for the conduits receivables-backed
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commercial paper develops and the conduit is unable to purchase the undivided interest offered by GCC the

agent bank for the trade receivable securitization program is obligated to purchase the undivided interest in

the trade receivables from GCC under the terms of the program

The Company accounts for the securitization as an on-balance sheet financing arrangement because the

Company has maintained effective control of the trade receivables through call option that gives GCC the

unilateral right to repurchase the undivided interests Accordingly the trade receivables and related debt are

included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets GCC has granted security interest in its trade

receivables to the commercial paper conduit There were no borrowings outstanding under the trade receivable

securitization program at December 31 2010 and 2009

At December 31 2010 the Company had available to it unused lines of credit amounting to $307308 com
pared to $310504 at December 31 2009 These lines are available to meet the short-term cash requirements

of the Company and certain committed lines of credit have annual fees of up to 67 basis points 0.67% and 92

basis points 0.92% of the committed lines of credit as of December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Short-term borrowings outstanding during 2010 and 2009 ranged from minimum of $10786 and $11189

to maximum of $20962 and $65858 respectively Short-term borrowings outstanding at December 31 2010

and 2009 totaled $19695 and $15232 respectively and were drawn by the Companys Canadian subsidiary

against bank line of credit secured by all personal property of that subsidiary The average daily amount of

borrowings outstanding under short-term credit agreements during 2010 and 2009 amounted to approximately

$16000 and $18000 at weighted-average interest rates of 2.94% and 2.19% respectively The weighted-aver

age interest rate for amounts outstanding at December 31 2010 was 3.35%

The revolving credit agreement the trade receivable securitization program and certain other note agree
ments contain various covenants that limit the Companys ability to make investments pay dividends incur

debt dispose of property and issue equity securities The Company is also required to maintain certain finan

cial ratios as defined in the agreements The Company was in compliance with all covenants as of December

31 2010 and 2009

The carrying amount of the Companys outstanding long-term fixed-rate debt exceeded its fair value by

$2815 and $4590 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively The fair value of the long-term fixed-rate

debt is estimated by using yields obtained from independent pricing sources for similar types of borrowings
The fair value of the Companys variable-rate short- and long-term debt approximates its carrying value at

December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company has noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all full-time

employees The plan provides retirement benefits based on an employees average earnings and years of ser
vice Employees become one hundred percent 100% vested after three years of service regardless of age The

Companys plan funding policy is to make contributions provided that the total annual contributions will not

be less than Employee Retirement Income Security Act ERISA and the Pension Protection Act of 2006 mini

mums or greater than the maximum tax-deductible amount to review contribution and funding strategy on

regular basis and to allow discretionary contributions to be made by the Company from time to time The

assets of the defined benefit pension plan are invested primarily in fixed income and equity securities money
market funds and other investments

The Company provides certain postretirement health care and life insurance benefits to retired employ
ees Substantially all of the Companys employees may become eligible for postretirement medical benefits if

they reach the age and service requirements of the retiree medical plan and retire on service pension under

the defined benefit pension plan Benefits are provided through insurance coverage with premiums based on

the benefits paid during the year The Company funds postretirement benefits on pay-as-you-go basis and

accordingly there were no assets held in the postretirement benefits plan at December 31 2010 and 2009
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The following table sets forth information regarding the Companys pension and other postretirement ben

efits as of December 31 2010 and 2009

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009

Projected benefit obligation $396008 $376651 $79762 $74336
Fair value of plan assets 332392 298352

Funded status 63616 78299 $79762 $74336

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Companys defined benefit pension plan was $336457 and

$309594 at December 31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet for the years ended December 31 consist of the

following

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009

Current accrued benefit cost 800 600 7300 8000
Non-current accrued benefit cost 62816 77699 72462 66336

Net amount recognized 63616 78299 $79762 $74336

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss for the years ended December 31 net of tax

consist of the following

Net actuarial loss 96542 97656 20881

Prior service cost gain 4116 4974 10523

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 100658 102630 10358

Amounts estimated to be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit

costs in 2011 net of tax consist of the following

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

Net actuarial loss $7454 1222

Prior service cost gain 856 1344

Accumulated other comprehensive loss $8310 122

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the actuarial present value of the pension and postre

tirement benefit obligations as of December 31 are

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2010 2009 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.50% 5.75% 4.75% 5.00%

Rate of compensation increase 4.25% 4.00%

Health care cost trend on covered charges 8% 5% 7% 5%

For measurement of the postretirement benefit obligation an 8.00% annual rate of increase in the per

capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed at December 31 2010 This rate is assumed to decrease

to 5.00% at January 2019 and remain at that level thereafter

Pension Benefits

2010 2009

Postretirement Benefits

2010 2009

17656

11856

5800
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The following presents information regarding the plans for the years ended December 31

Employer contributions 40763 35097 8631
Participant contributions 2342
Benefits paid $35011 $30881 $10973

The Company expects to make contributions totaling $40800 to its defined benefit pension plan during

Estimated future defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plan payments to plan partici

pants for the years ending December 31 are as follows

Pension Postretirement

Year Benefits Benefits

2011 29300 7300
2012 28800 7500
2013 29600 7800
2014 30500 7900
2015 30900 8000
After 2015 166100 40000

The investment objective of the Companys defined benefit pension plan is to ensure that there are suf
ficient assets to fund regular pension benefits payable to employees over the long-term life of the plan The

Companys defined benefit pension plan seeks to allocate plan assets in manner that is closely duration-

matched with the actuarial projected cash flow liabilities consistent with prudent standards for preservation
of capital tolerance of investment risk and maintenance of liquidity

Asset allocation information for the defined benefit pension plan at December 31 2010 and 2009 is as

follows

Postretirement Benefits

2010 2009

8703

2209
$10912

2010 2009

2010 Target 2009 Target
Actual Allocation Actual Allocation

Investment Allocation Range Allocation Range

Equity securities-US 8% 3-15% 7% 3-15%

Equity securities-International 7% 3-15% 10% 3-15%
Fixed income investments-US 57% 35-75% 63% 3575%
Fixed income investments-International 11% 3-15% 5% 3-15%
Absolute return 10% 5-15% 7% 5-15%
Real assets 4% 3-10% 5% 3-10%
Private equity 1% 0-3% 1% 0-3%
Short-term investments 2% 0-3% 2% 0-3%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

The following is description of the valuation methodologies used for assets held by the defined benefit

pension plan measured at fair value

Equity securities

Equity securities and certain commingled equity funds are valued at the closing price reported on the

active market on which the individual securities are traded Other equity mutual funds are valued by the fund

manager based on the fair value of the underlying assets held by the fund

Fixed income investments

Government government agency and certain corporate bonds are valued using the closing price reported

on the active market on which the securities are traded Investments in mortgage-backed securities are valued

2011

Pension Benefits

2010 2009
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using models with readily observable market data as inputs adjusted for potentially lower trading activity in

the market for mortgage-backed securities Commingled institutional fixed income funds are valued by the

fund manager based on the fair value of the underlying assets held by the fund

Absolute return

Investments in absolute return funds utilize hedge fund of funds approach Units of the funds are not

available on any active exchange Valuations are based on unobservable inputs and reported at estimated fair

value as determined by the fund manager

Real Assets

Real asset investments are made primarily in real estate investments trusts and natural resource funds

Fund values are primarily determined by the fund manager and are based on the valuation of the underly

ing investments which include inputs such as cost discounted future cash flows independent appraisals and

market-based comparable data

Private equity

Private equity investments are valued by the fund manager based on the fair value of the underlying assets

held by the fund

Short-term investments

Short-term investments are carried at cost which approximates fair value and are listed at Level in the

fair value hierarchy since they are not traded on listed exchanges and the valuation methodology uses signifi

cant assumptions that are not directly observable

The methods described above may produce fair value calculations that may not be indicative of net real

izable value or reflective of future fair values Furthermore while the Company believes its defined benefit

pension plan valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants the use of dif

ferent methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result

in different fair value measurement at the reporting date

There have been no changes in the methodologies used by the Company to determine fair value at December

31 2010 or 2009

The following tables set forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the defined benefit pension plan

assets measured at fair value as of December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31 2010

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable

Identical Inputs Observable Inputs Inputs

Investment Level Level Level Total

Equity securities US
Corporate stocks 12454 12454

Mutual funds 5431 7782 13213

Equity securities International

Corporate stocks 165 165

Mutual funds 21212 3518 24730

Fixed income investments US

Corporate debt 91684 91684

US government debt 21933 21933

Mutual funds 17569 57257 74826

Fixed income investments International

Corporate debt 20548 20548

Commingled funds 16091 16091

Absolute return 31838 31838

Real assets 4714 10130 14844

Private equity 4006 4006

Short-term investments 6060 6060

Total $190996 $73271 $68125 $332392
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__________________
December 31 2009

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable

Identical Inputs Observable Inputs Inputs
Investment Level Level Level Total

Equity securities US 7069 14448 21517

Equity securities International 29827 29827
Fixed income investments US 112541 75858 188399
Fixed income investments International 15119 15119
Absolute return 20978 20978
Real assets 3880 9486 13366
Private equity 3317 3317
Short-term investments 5829 5829

Total $123490 $120133 $54729 $298352

The tables below set forth summary of changes in the fair value of the defined benefit pension plan Level

assets for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

December 31 2010

Fixed Income

Investments Absolute Real Private Short-term

International Return Assets Equity investments Total

Balance beginning of year $15119 $20978 9486 $3317 5829 54729
Realized gains/losses 19 521 91 418
Unrealized gains/losses 1048 1236 703 227 3214
Purchases sales issuances

and settlements net 95 10145 52 371 231 10600

Balance end of year $16091 $31838 $10130 $4006 6060 68125

December 31 2009

Fixed Income

Investments Absolute Real Private Short-term

International Return Assets Equity investments Total

Balance beginning of year $14095 $19212 $12559 $3040 28330 77236
Realized gains/losses 96 96

Unrealized gains/losses 1104 1775 3013 341 475
Purchases sales issuances

and settlements net 87 56 522 22501 22128

Balance end of year $15119 $20978 9486 $3317 5829 54729

The net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 included the following

components

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Service cost 15502 15710 15019 $2086 1931 2056
Interest cost 21763 21572 20069 3918 4168 4461
Expected return on plan assets 20691 19495 21259
Amortization of

Net actuarial loss 11325 10181 9860 2045 1439 2101
Prior service cost gain 1405 1248 1262 2181 2456 2457

Curtailment loss gain 542 2452
Net periodic benefit cost 29304 29758 24951 5868 2630 6161
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In 2009 as result of reductions in its workforce the Company recorded $542 curtailment loss and

$2452 curtailment gain in the income statement for the defined benefit pension plan and postretirement ben

efits plan respectively

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended December

31 were

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008

Discount rate 5.75% 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 6.00% 5.75%

Expected return on plan assets 6.25% 6.25% 8.00%

Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 3.80% 4.25%

Health care cost trend on

covered charges 7% /5% 8% 5% 9% 5%

The expected return on plan assets assumption for the defined benefit pension plan is long-term assump

tion and was determined after evaluating input from both the plans actuary and pension fund investment

advisors consideration of historical rates of return on plan assets and anticipated rates of return on the vari

ous classes of assets in which the plan invests The Company has elected to use an expected long-term rate of

return on plan assets of 6.25% The Company anticipates that its investment managers will continue to gener

ate long-term returns consistent with its assumed rate despite periodic fluctuations in market performance

For measurement of the postretirement benefits net periodic cost 7.00% annual rate of increase in per

capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2010 The rate was assumed to decrease 1.00% per

year to 5.00% at January 2012 and to remain at that level thereafter

PROFIT SHARING AND SAVINGS PLAN

The Company provides defined contribution profit sharing and savings plan covering substantially all of

its full-time employees Annual contributions by the Company to the profit-sharing portion of the plan are at

the discretion of management and are generally based on the profitability of the Company Cost recognized

by the Company under the profit-sharing portion of the plan was $31576 $27645 and $53889 for the years

ended December 31 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Employees may also make voluntary contributions

to the savings portion of the plan subject to limitations imposed by federal tax law ERISA and the Pension

Protection Act of 2006

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has lease agreement with an independent lessor that is considered to be VTE The agree

ment provides $28720 of financing for five of the Companys distribution facilities and carries five-year term

expiring July 2013 The financing structure used with this lease qualifies as silo of VIE Graybar as lessee

retains the power to direct the operational activities that most significantly impact the economic performance

of the VIE and has an obligation to absorb losses and the right to receive benefits from the sale of the real prop

erty held by the VIE lessor Therefore the Company is the primary beneficiary of this VIE and accordingly

consolidates the silo in its financial statements

As of December 31 2010 the consolidated silo included in the Companys consolidated financial statements

had net property balance of $15775 long-term debt of $27715 and noncontrolling interest of $1005 At

December 31 2009 the consolidated silo included in the Companys consolidated financial statements had

net property balance of $16299 long-term debt of $27715 and noncontrolling interest of $1005

Under the terms of the lease agreement the amount guaranteed by the Company as the residual fair value

of the property subject to the lease arrangement was $28720 at December 31 2010 and 2009
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Rental expense was $25684 $27185 and $29104 in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively Future minimum
rental payments required under operating leases that have either initial or remaining noncancelable lease

terms in excess of one year as of December 31 2010 are as follows

For the Years Ending

December 31 Minimum Rental Payments

2011 $19640
2012 16480
2013 12734
2014 10316
2015 7717
After 2015 29988

The Company entered into swap agreement to manage interest rates on amounts due under the lease

arrangement discussed above in September 2000 The swap agreement which expires in July 2013 is based

on notional amount of $28720 The agreement calls for an exchange of interest payments with the Company
receiving payments on LIBOR-based floating rate and making payments based on fixed rate of 6.92%

There is no exchange of the notional amount upon which the payments are based As discussed in Note to the

consolidated financial statements the swap is designated as completely effective cash flow hedge of the vari

able interest payments due under the lease The fair value of the swap was $4706 and $4969 at December

31 2010 and 2009 respectively and is recorded in other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to various claims disputes administrative and legal mat
ters incidental to the Companys past and current business activities As result contingencies arise resulting

from an existing condition situation or set of circumstances involving an uncertainty as to the realization of

possible loss

The Company accounts for loss contingencies in accordance with US GAAIR Estimated loss contingencies

are accrued only if the loss is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated With respect to

particular loss contingency it may be probable that loss has occurred but the estimate of the loss is wide

range If the Company deems some amount within the range to be better estimate than any other amount

within the range that amount shall be accrued However if no amount within the range is better estimate

than any other amount the minimum amount of the range is accrued While the Company believes that none
of these claims disputes administrative and legal matters will have material adverse effect on its financial

position these matters are uncertain and the Company cannot at this time determine whether the financial

impact if any of these matters will be material to its results of operations in the period in which such matters

are resolved or better estimate becomes available

10 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSWE INCOME LOSS

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss as of December 31 are as follows

2010 2009

Currency translation 11549 8868
Unrealized loss from interest rate swap 2876 3037
Pension liability 100658 102630
Postretirement benefits liability 10358 5800
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $102343 $102599
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11 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION UNAUDITED

Quarterly financial information for 2010 and 2009 adjusted for the declaration of stock dividends of ten

percent 10% in 2010 and 2009 is as follows

2010

For the Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Net sales $1001174 $1130771 $1249306 $1235126

Gross margin 194659 209541 233995 228446

Net income attributable to the Company 3526 9508 19843 9121

Net income attributable to the Company

per share of common stock 0.30 0.82 1.71 0.78

All periods adjusted for ten percent 10% stock dividend declared in December 2010 Prior to these adjustments the average common shares outstand

ing for the first second and third quarters of 2010 were 10646511 10585178 and 10574117 respectively

2009

For the Quarter Ended March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Net sales $1057548 $1121592 $1124107 $1074635

Gross margin 207239 217916 215825 213970

Net income attributable to the Company 2485 8321 10019 16452

Net income attributable to the Company

per share of common stock 0.21 0.71 0.85 1.41

All periods adjusted for ten percent 10% stock dividends declared in December 2010 and December 2009 Prior to these adjustments the average com

mon shares outstanding for the first second third and fourth quarters of 2009 were 9748124 9688326 9660951 and 9626045 respectively

Item Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Companys disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and

15d-15e are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports that the Company

files and submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to Company management includ

ing the Companys Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely

decisions regarding required disclosure

An evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Companys disclosure controls and

procedures as of December 31 2010 was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the

Companys management Based on that evaluation the Companys management including the Principal

Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and proce

dures were effective as of December 31 2010 to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports

filed or submitted by the Company under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported

within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and forms

Management of the Company including its Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer

does not expect that its disclosure controls will prevent or detect all errors control system no matter how

well designed and operated can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance that the control systems

objective will be met Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls

can provide absolute assurance that all control issues if any have been detected These inherent limitations

include the realities that disclosure requirements may be misinterpreted and judgments in decision-making

may be inexact

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control

over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f All internal
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control systems no matter how well designed have inherent limitations Therefore even those systems deter

mined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation

and presentation

Management of the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Companys internal con
trol over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO Based on that evaluation

management of the Company concluded that the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effec

tive as of December 31 2010

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in the Companys internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

Companys last fiscal quarter that have materially affected or are likely to materially affect the Companys
internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B Other Information

Not applicable

PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information with respect to the directors of the Company who are nominees for election at the 2011

annual meeting of shareholders that is required to be included pursuant to this Item 10 will be included under
the caption Proposal Nominees for Election as Directors and Information About the Board of Directors

and Corporate Governance Matters in the Companys Information Statement relating to the 2011 Annual

Meeting the Information Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 14c-5 under the Exchange
Act and is incorporated herein by reference

Certain information regarding executive officers and directors who are not nominated for election at the

2011 annual meeting of shareholders namely Offenbacher that is required by this Item is set forth as

Supplementary Item at the end of Part hereof On January 10 2011 Offenbacher an officer director

and Senior Vice President U.S Business of the Company announced his intention to retire as an officer and

director and from his employment with the Company effective April 2011 II Offenbachers extensive

sales and management experience and industry knowledge enable him to provide valuable input to the Board

on strategic initiatives proposed by the Company especially with respect to sales and strategy in the electrical

market

The information with respect to the Companys audit committee and audit committee financial expert and

nominating committee required to be included pursuant to this Item 10 will be included under the caption

Information About the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Matters in the Companys Information

Statement and is incorporated herein by reference

The Company has adopted code of ethics that applies to the Principal Executive Officer Principal

Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer Covered Officers This code of ethics is appended to the

Companys business conduct guidelines for all employees The business conduct guidelines and specific code

for Covered Officers may be accessed at the About Us page under Code of Ethics at the Companys website

at http//www.graybar.com and is also available in print without charge upon written request addressed to the

Secretary of the Company at its principal executive offices
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Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information with respect to executive compensation the Companys advisory compensation commit

tee and the compensation committee interlocks and insider participation required to be included pursuant
to this Item 11 will be included under the captions Information About the Board of Directors and Corporate
Governance Matters and Compensation Discussion and Analysis in the Information Statement and is incor

porated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

The information with respect to the security ownership of beneficial owners of more than five percent 5%
of the Common Stock and of directors and executive officers of the Company required to be included pursuant

to this Item 12 will be included under the captions Beneficial Ownership of More Than 5% of the Outstanding

Common Stock and Beneficial Ownership of Management in the Information Statement and is incorporated

herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

At the date of this report other than as described under the caption Transactions with Director in the

Information Statement there are no reportable transactions business relationships or indebtedness of the

type required to be included pursuant to this Item 13 between the Company and the beneficial owner of more
than five percent 5% of the Common Stock the directors or nominees for director of the Company the execu
tive officers of the Company or the members of the immediate families of such individuals If there is any
change in that regard prior to the filing of the Information Statement such information will be included under
such caption in the Information Statement and shall be incorporated by reference

The information with respect to director independence and to corporate governance required to be included

pursuant to this Item 13 will be included under the caption Proposal Nominees for Election as Directors and
Information about the Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Matters in the Information Statement
and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information with respect to principal accounting fees and services required to be included pursuant to

this Item 14 will be included under the caption Relationship with Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm in the Companys Information Statement and is incorporated herein by reference

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

Documents filed as part of this report

The following financial statements and Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are

included on the indicated pages in this 2010 Annual Report on Form 10-K

Index to Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years ended December 31
2010 page 24

ii Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2010 and 2009 page 25

iii Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years ended December

31 2010 page 26

iv Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for each of the three

years ended December 31 2010 page 27
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements pages 28 to 45

vi Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm page 23

Index to Financial Schedules

All schedules are omitted because of the absence of the conditions under which they are

required or because the required information is set forth in the financial statements and the

accompanying notes thereto

Exhibits

The following exhibits required to be filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K have

been included

Articles of Incorporation

Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q for the Quarter ended June 30 2010

Commission File No.000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

ii Bylaws

By-laws as amended through December 10 2009 filed as Exhibit 3ii to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 16 2009 Commission

File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

and Voting Trust Agreement

Voting Trust Agreement dated as of March 16 2007 form which is attached as Annex to

the Prospectus dated January 18 2007 constituting part of the Companys Registration

Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-139992 and incorporated herein by reference

The Company hereby agrees to furnish to the Commission upon request copy of each instru

ment omitted pursuant to Item 601b4iiiA of Regulation S-K

10 Material Contracts

Management Incentive Plan

ii Graybar Electric Company Inc Supplemental Benefit Plan amended and restated

entered into between the Company and certain employees effective January

2009 filed as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated

December ii 2008 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by

reference

iii Form of Deferral Agreement under Graybar Electric Company Inc Supplemental

Benefit Plan filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

dated December ii 2008 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein

by reference

iv Receivables Sale Agreement dated June 30 2000 between Graybar Electric

Company Inc and Graybar Commerce Corporation filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q for the period ended June 30 2003

Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference Amendment

to Receivables Sale Agreement dated August 15 2006 flied as Exhibit 10x to

the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-137249

and incorporated herein by reference Amendment to Receivables Sale Agreement

dated of June ii 2010 filed as Exhibit 10u to Companys Current Report on Form

8-K dated June ii 2010 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein

by reference
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Receivables Purchase Agreement dated June 30 2000 among Graybar Commerce

Corporation as Seller Graybar Electric Company Inc as Servicer Falcon Asset

Securitization Corporation and Bank One NA as Agent and other financial insti

tutions named therein filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30 2003 Commission File No 000

00255 Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated July 12 2000 filed

as Exhibit 10xi to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i/A filed

on October 24 2006 Registration No 333-137249 Amendments to Receivables

Purchase Agreement dated January 2001 June 22 2001 August 29 2001

October 26 2001 December 31 2001 October 23 2002 and December 23 2002

filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period

ended June 30 2003 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein

by reference Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated October 22

2003 filed as Exhibit 10v to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-2

Registration No 333-118575 and incorporated herein by reference Amendment

to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated September 26 2005 filed as Exhibit

10v to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December

31 2005 Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated August 15 2006

filed as Exhibit 10ix to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i

Registration No 333-137249 and incorporated herein by reference Amendment to

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated September 25 2009 and signed September

30 2009 filed as Exhibit 10v to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

October 2009 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by refer

ence Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated October 2009 and

signed October 14 2009 filed as Exhibit 10 to the Companys Current Report on

Form8-K filed October 15 2009 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated

herein by reference Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of

June 11 2010 filed as Exhibit 10i to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K

dated June 11 2010 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by

reference Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated as of October

2010 filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current report on Form 8-K dated

October 2010 as filed with the Commission on October 2010 Commission File

No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

vi Five-Year Credit Agreement dated May 2007 among Graybar Electric Company

Inc Bank of America N.A as Agent and other banks named therein filed as

Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended

March 31 2007 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by

reference

21 List of subsidiaries of the Company

31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Principal Executive

Officer

31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyAct of 2002 Principal Financial

Officer

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Principal Executive Officer

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Principal Financial Officer

%Compensaton arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this Annual Report on Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto

duly authorized as of the 8th day of March 2011

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC

By Is REYNOLDS JR

Reynolds Jr

Chairman of the Board and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this Annual Report on Form 10-K

has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities indicated on

March 2011

/s REYNOLDS JR

Reynolds Jr

Is DALESSANDRO

DAlessandro

Is MARTIN BEAGEN

Martin Beagen

/s COLE

Cole

Is GEEKIE

Geekie

/s GIGLIO

Giglio

Is GURGANOUS

Gurganous

s/ HARwooD

Harwood

/s HUGHES

Hughes

Is LYONS

Lyons

Director Chairman of the Board and President

Principal Executive Officer

Director

Principal Financial Officer

Vice President and Controller

Principal Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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SIGNATURES CONTINUED

Is MAZZARELLA Director

Mazzarella

Is OFFENBACHER Director

Offenbacher

Is PROPST Director

Propst
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Index to Exhibits

Articles of Incorporation

Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the

Companys Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the Quarter ended June 30 2010

Commission File No.000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

ii Bylaws

By-laws as amended through December 10 2009 filed as Exhibit 3ii to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 16 2009 Commission

File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

and Voting Trust Agreement

Voting Trust Agreement dated as of March 16 2007 form which is attached as Annex to the

Prospectus dated January 18 2007 constituting part of the Companys Registration Statement

on Form S-i Registration No 333-139992 and incorporated herein by reference

The Company hereby agrees to furnish to the Commission upon request copy of each instrument

omitted pursuant to Item 60ib4iiiA of Regulation S-K

10 Material Contracts

Management Incentive Plan

ii Graybar Electric Company Inc Supplemental Benefit Plan amended and restated

entered into between the Company and certain employees effective January 2009 filed

as Exhibit 99.1 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated December ii 2008

Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

iii Form of Deferral Agreement under Graybar Electric Company Inc Supplemental Benefit

Plan filed as Exhibit 99.2 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated December

ii 2008 Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

iv Receivables Sale Agreement dated June 30 2000 between Graybar Electric Company

Inc and Graybar Commerce Corporation filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Quarterly

Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30 2003 Commission File No 000-00255

and incorporated herein by reference Amendment to Receivables Sale Agreement dated

August 15 2006 filed as Exhibit 10x to the Companys Registration Statement on Form

S-i Registration No 333-137249 and incorporated herein by reference Amendment to

Receivables Sale Agreement dated of June 11 2010 filed as Exhibit 10u to Companys

Current Report on Form 8-K dated June ii 2010 Commission File No 000-00255 and

incorporated herein by reference

Receivables Purchase Agreement dated June 30 2000 among Graybar Commerce

Corporation as Seller Graybar Electric Company Inc as Servicer Falcon Asset

Securitization Corporation and Bank One NA as Agent and other financial institu

tions named therein filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form

iO-Q for the period ending June 30 2003 Commission File No 000-00255 Amendment

to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated July 12 2000 filed as Exhibit iOxi to the

Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i/A filed on October 24 2006 Registration

No 333-137249 Amendments to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated January

2001 June 22 2001 August 29 2001 October 26 2001 December 31 2001 October 23

2002 and December 23 2002 filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Companys Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30 2003 Commission File No 000-00255 and

incorporated herein by reference Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated

E-1



October 22 2003 filed as Exhibit 10v to the Companys Registration Statement on Form

S-2 Registration No 333-118575 and incorporated herein by reference Amendment

to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated September 26 2005 filed as Exhibit 10v
to the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2005

Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated August 15 2006 filed as Exhibit

10ix to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-

137249 and incorporated herein by reference Amendment to Receivables Purchase

Agreement dated September 25 2009 and signed September 30 2009 filed as Exhibit

10v to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 2009 Commission

File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference Amendment to Receivables

Purchase Agreement dated October 2009 and signed October 14 2009 filed as Exhibit

10 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 15 2009 Commission

File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference Amendment to Receivables

Purchase Agreement dated as of June 11 2010 filed as Exhibit 101 to the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 11 2010 Commission File No 000-00255 and

incorporated herein by reference Amendment to Receivables Purchase Agreement dated

as of October 2010 filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Companys Current report on Form 8-K

dated October 2010 as filed with the Commission on October 2010 Commission File

No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

vi Five-Year Credit Agreement dated May 2007 among Graybar Electric Company Inc
Bank of America N.A as Agent and other banks named therein filed as Exhibit 10.1

to the Companys Quarterly Report on Form i0-Q for the period ended March 31 2007

Commission File No 000-00255 and incorporated herein by reference

21 List of subsidiaries of the Company

31.1 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Principal Executive

Officer

31.2 Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Principal Financial

Officer

32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Principal Executive Officer

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Principal Financial Officer

Compensation arrangement
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EXHIBIT 21

GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPAN1 INC

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Graybar International Inc Missouri corporation

Graybar Financial Services Inc Missouri corporation

Graybar Electric Limited Nova Scotia corporation

Graybar Canada Limited Nova Scotia corporation

Graybar Services Inc an Illinois corporation

Distribution Associates Inc Missouri corporation

Graybar Business Services Inc Missouri corporation

Graybar Electric Canada Limited Nova Scotia corporation

Graybar Commerce Corporation Delaware corporation

Commonwealth Controls Corporation Missouri corporation

Graybar Newfoundland Limited Newfoundland and Labrador corporation



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Robert Reynolds Jr certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Graybar Electric Company Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15ffl

for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation

of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2011

Is ROBERT REYNOLDS JR

Robert Reynolds Jr

President and Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Beatty DAlessandro certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Graybar Electric Company Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or

omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances

under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this

report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f
for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating

to the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation

of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

the registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 2011

Is BEATTY DALESSANDRO

Beatty DAlessandro

Senior Vice President and

Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS AIOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Robert Reynolds Jr President and Principal Executive Officer of Graybar Electric

Company Inc the Company certify pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

18 U.S.C Section 1350 that

The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31 2010

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

Is ROBERT REYNOLDS JR

Robert Reynolds Jr

President and Principal Executive Officer

March 2011



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C SECTION 1350

AS AJOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Beatty DAlessandro Senior Vice President and Principal Financial Officer of Graybar
Electric Company Inc the Company certify pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002 18 U.S.C Section 1350 that

The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31 2010

the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company

Is BEATTY DALESSANDRO

Beatty DAlessandro

Senior Vice President and

Principal Financial Officer

March 2011
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End of Annual Report on Form 10-K
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NI nn fl as of December 31 2010

New York District

Richard Harvey

District Vice President

Robert Gibson

Director Electrical Sales

Richard King

Director Comm/Data Sales

Joseph Sabatino

Director Operations

Timothy Birky

Director Finance

Boston District

Peter Elkas

District Vice president

Todd McDonough
Director Electrical Sales

Thomas Feiden

Director Comm/Data Sales

Gerald Pollick

Director Operations

Joseph Peduto

Director Finance

Kenneth Bleakney

Director Human Resources

Pittsburgh District

Steven Schooley

District Vice President

Chris Butt

Director Electrical Sales

Robert Bender

Director Comm/Data Sales

Robert Smith

Director Operations

Peter Wingrove
Director Finance

Bryan Scott

Director Human Resources

Atlanta District

Joseph LaMotte

District Vice President

Nathan Decker

Director Electrical Sales

Thomas Karrenbauer

Director Comm/Data Sales

Chriscinda Krasinski

Director Operations

John Kahne

Director Finance

Reyne Boik

Director Human Resources

Richmond District

Thomas Gurganous
District Vice President

LindseyG Darnell

Director Electrical Sales

Andrew Ciccone

Director Electrical Sales

Thomas Moore

Director Comm/Data Sales

Gregory Hochheiser

Director Comm/Data Sales

David Ange
Director Operations

Roderick Morgan
Director Finance

Vicki Hall

Director Human Resources

Tampa District

Robert Lyons
District Vice President

David Schwichtenberg

Director Electrical Sales

Edward Duda
Director Comm/Data Sales

Dale Thayer Jr

Director Operations

Scott Sinning

Director Finance

Joe Contreras

Director Human Resources

Chicago District

Richard Cole

District Vice President

Thomas Pratt

Director Electrical Sales

Thomas Bleker

Director Comm/Data Sales

Martin Aske

Director Operations

Steven Bourbeau

Director Finance

Kimberly Morris-Woodfork

Director Human Resources

Minneapolis District

William Keller

District Vice President

Rick Schroeder

Director Electrical Sales

Ellen Rebne
Director Comm/Data Sales

Jamie Phillips

Director Operations

Allan Riel

Director Finance

Cindy Paschke

Director Human Resources

St Louis District

Michael Dumas
District Vice President

David Moeller

Director Electrical Sales

Stephen Boschert

Director Comm/Data Sales

Susan Reale

Director Operations

Gregory Cunningham
Director Finance

Tricia Rasch

Director Human Resources

Dallas District

Randall Harwood
District Vice President

Daryl Gough
Director Electrical Sales

Stacy Wittig

Director Electrical Sales

Philip Harvatin

Director Comm/Data Sales

Don Moore

Director Operations

Darryl Bain

Director Finance

Grady Norton

Director Human Resources

Seattle District

David Bender
District Vice President

Kirk Snure

Director Electrical Sales

Christopher Borel

Director Comm/Data Sales

John Fischer

Director Operations

Paul Hansen

Director Finance

Robert Honey
Director Human Resources

Phoenix District

Craig Mead
District Vice President

Tyler Gibson

Director Electrical Sales

Andrew Roth

Director Comm/Data Sales

Shayne Jones

Director Operations

Kevin Cook
Director Finance

Rita Sandoval

Director Human Resources

California District

David Maxwell

District Vice President

Stephen Cray
Director Electrical Sales

Jamie Thompson
Director Electrical Sales

Dwayne Roberts

Director Operations

Richard Birkett

Director Finance

Melanie Hull

Director Human Resources

Graybar Canada

Frank Hughes
President and Chief

Executive Officer

Peter Horncastle
Executive Vice President

Brian D.Thomas
Senior Vice President

Canadian Business

Faye Coady
Vice President

Comm/Data Business

Michael Williamson

Vice President Comptroller

Mark Kehoe

Director Human Resources



cat fl as of December 31 2010

Corporate Offices Pittsburgh District Richmond District Chicago District

Corporate Headquarters 900 Ridge Avenue 1510 Tomlynn Street 900 Regency Drive

34 North Meramec Avenue Pittsburgh Pennsylvania 15212 Richmond Virginia 23230 Glendale Heights Illinois

St Louis Missouri 63105 412 323-5200 804 354-1300 60139

314 573-9200 630 893-3600
BRANCHES BRANCHES

Kentucky Virginia BRANCHES
Centerpoint

Lexington Louisville Hampton Norfolk Roanoke Illinois

11885 Lackland Road
Ohio Sterling Commonwealth

Chicago Downtown East Peoria

St Louis Missouri 63146
Akron Cincinnati Cleveland

Controls-Richmond Naperville Springfield

314 573-5700 Columbus Dayton Lima North Carolina Indiana

Mansfield Toledo Youngstown Asheville Charlotte Greensboro Fort Wayne Hammond
Bel Ridge Pennsylvania

Monroe Raleigh Wilmington Indianapolis South Bend

8170 Lackland Road Erie Greensburg
Winston-Salem

Michigan

Bel Ridge Missouri 63114 West Virginia
South Carolina

Belleville East Livonia Flint

314 573-2000 Charleston Wheeling
Rock Hill Grand Rapids Lansing

New York
Tennessee Iowa

New York District Buffalo Rochester Syracuse
Bristol Cedar Rapids Davenport

Maryland Wisconsin
105 Fieldcrest Ave

Atlanta District Baltimore Lanham Madison West Allis

Suite 207

Edison New Jersey 08837 2050 Nancy Hanks Drive SERVICE CENTER
Minneapolis District

973 404-5555 Norcross Georgia 30071 Charlotte North Carolina

770 441-5580
2300 East 25th Street

BRANCHES Tampa District Minneapolis Minnesota 55406

New York
BRANCHES

9404 Camden Field Parkway
612 721-3545

Albany Garden City Georgia

New jersey
Augusta Cartersville Fayetteville Riverview FL 33578 BRANCHES

Hamilton Teterboro Wanamassa Marietta Savannah 813 984-3100 Minnesota

Pennsylvania
Alabama

BRANCHES
Brooklyn Park Duluth Hibbing

Allentown Harrisburg Philadelphia Birmingham Huntsville Mobile Mankato Rochester St Cloud
Florida St Paul

Delaware South Carolina
Daytona Beach Fort Myers Fort

New Castle Columbia Greenville Hilton Head
Pierce Gainesville Jacksonville

North Dakota

Bismarck FargoSpartanburg
Lakeland Melbourne Miami

SERVICE CENTER
Tennessee Naples Orlando Panama City

South Dakota

Carteret New Jersey Chattanooga Clarksville Knoxville Pinellas Pompano Beach Port Brookings Sioux Falls

Nashville Charlotte Sarasota Tallahassee Wisconsin
Boston District Florida Tampa West Palm Beach Green Bay Manitowoc Marinette

345 Harrison Avenue Pensacola Stevens Point

SERVICE CENTER

Boston Massachusetts 02118 Mississippi Iowa

Des Moines
617 406-5000 Gulfport Jackson

Riverview Florida

BRANCHES

Rhode Island

Cranston

Massachusetts

Wilmington West Springfield

Worcester

Maine

Portland

New Hampshire
Manchester

Vermont

Burlington Rutland

Connecticut

Wallingford

SERVICE CENTER

Taunton Massachusetts



Locations
continued

St Louis District Seattle District Zone Warehouses International Locations

8170 Lackland Road 1919 Sixth Avenue South
Austell Zone Graybar Canada

Bel Ridge Missouri 63114 Seattle Washington 98134

314 573-2000 206 292-4848 Woodlands Business Park 3600 Joseph Howe Dr

Building 100 Halifax Nova Scotia B3L
BRANCHES BRANCHES

8180 Troon Circle 4H7 Canada
Missouri Washington

Austell Georgia 30168 902 457-8787
Jefferson City Kansas City Everett Kent Spokane Tacoma

Springfield Oregon
678 945-9970

BRANCHES

Kansas Eugene Medford Portland Ontario

Wichita Idaho
Fresno Zone

Guelph Hamilton Kitchener

Nebraska Boise 4401 East Central Avenue Markham Mississauga Niagara

Omaha
Alaska Fresno California 93725 Falls Ottawa Sudbury Windsor

Tennessee Anchorage 559 264-2393 Nova Scotia

Jackson Memphis Montana
Bridgewater Dartmouth Halifax

Arkansas Billings Joliet Zone Kentville New Glasgow Sydney

Conway Little Rock Springdale Hawaii 1700 Crossroad Drive

Truro Yarmouth

Prince Edward Island
Indiana Honolulu

Joliet Illinois 60431 Charlottetown
Evansville

815 741-4660 New Brunswick
Oklahoma Phoenix District

Oklahoma City Tulsa
Bathurst Florenceville Fredericton

3350 West EarlI Drive Richmond Zone Moncton Saint John
Illinois

Phoenix Arizona 85017 2501 Distribution Drive Newfoundland and Labrador
Collinsville

602 2692131 Richmond Virginia 23231
Corner Brook Grand Falls-Windsor

St Johns Wabush
Dallas District BRANCHES 804 521-6800

Alberta

4601 Cambridge Road Arizona

Ft Worth Texas 76155
Mesa Peoria Tucson Springfield Zone Calgary Edmonton

British Columbia

817 213-1300
Colorado 1904 LeCompte Vancouver

Aurora Colorado Springs Denver Building 12
BRANCHES New Mexico Springfield Missouri 65802 Graybar Puerto Rico
Texas Albuquerque

417 864-4955
Besthree BuildingAbilene Amarillo Austin Texas

Beaumont Corpus Christi
El Paso Stafford Zone

LMM Airport Cargo Area

Freeport Houston San Antonio
Nevada

Base Muniz
13131 North PromenadeLouisiana

Las Vegas Carolina Puerto Rico 00979
Baton Rouge Lake Charles Boulevard

New Orleans Shreveport
Utah 787 622-2255

Stafford Texas 77477
Salt Lake City

281 340-5500

California District

Youngstown Zone
383 South Cheryl Lane

1100 Ohio Works Drive
City of Industry California

91789
Youngstown Ohio 44510

909 451-4300
330 799-3220

BRANCHES

California

Anaheim Bakersfield

Costa Mesa Dublin Fresno

Los Angeles Martinez Modesto

Rancho Cordova Sacramento

San Bernardino San Diego
San Francisco San Jose

San Marcos Santa Barbara

Santa Rosa Van Nuys

Nevada

Sparks

SERVICE CENTER

Hayward California
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